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INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

Name of the Company

Legal status of the Company

JSC Latvijas Gze

Joint Stock Company

Registration number. place and 000300064

date of registration

Address

Names of major shareholders

Names and positions of the
Board members

Names and positions of the
Council members

Financial year

Riga, March 25, 1991

Reregistered in Commercial Register
December 20, 2004 with common registration
No 40003000642

Vagonu street 20
Riga, LV-1009
Latvia

E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH (47.2%)
JSC Gazprom (34.0%)
LLC Itera Latvija (16.0%)

Adrians [avis — Chairman of the Board

Aleksandrs MihejevsAnexcanap Muxees) — Member of the Board,
Deputy Chairman of the Board

Jorg Tumat — Member of the Board, Deputy Chairnfathe Board, till
December 31, 2013

Mario Nullmeier — Member of the Board, Deputy Chan of the Board,
from January 1, 2014

Anda Ulpe — Member of the Board

Gints Freibergs — Member of the Board

Kiril Seleznov Kupunn Cenesnes) — Chairman of the Council

Juris Savickis — Deputy Chairman of the Council

Matthias Kohlenbach — Deputy Chairman of the CautitiJuly 5, 2013,
Member of the Council

Achim Saul — Deputy Chairman of the Council, fromyJ, 2013

Uwe Fip — Member of the Council

Mario Nullmeier — Member of the Council, till Decésr 31, 2013
Andreas Rau — Member of the Council, till July 812

Peter Klingenberger Member of the Council, till July 5, 2013

Rainer Link — Member of the Council, from July ®13

Jorg Tumat — Member of the Council, from Januarg,4

Jelena KarpelHnena Kaprens) — Member of the Council

Vlada RusakovaRnana Pycakosa) — Member of the Council

Igor Nazarov Kirops Hazapos) — Member of the Council, till July 5, 2013
Aleksandr Krasnenkow(iekcanap Kpacuenkos) — Member of the
Council, till July 5, 2013

Jelena MihailovaKnena Muxaiinosa) — Member of the Council, from July
5,2013

Nikolay Dubik Hukomaii Iyoux) — Member of the Council, from July 5,
2013

1 January — 31 December 2013
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Kr. Valdemara iela 21-21
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Latvia

Certified auditor in charge:
Lolita Capkevia
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Report of the Board of Directors

1. Activity of the Company in the reporting year

The Joint Stock Company “Latvijasa@” (hereinafter — the Company) is an energy suppiypany engaged in
natural gas transmission, storage, distribution sadd. In 1997, the Energy Supply Regulation Cduwfcthe
Republic of Latvia issued to the Company excludizences for the provision of regulated public sees till
February 10, 2017. On January 31, 2007, the Couwiitiie Public Utility Commission (hereinafter -etRUC)
issued to the Company a licence for natural gast#hFebruary 10, 2012. The licence for naturas gale from
February 11, 2012 thru February 10, 2017 was isfiyethe PUC Council on January 12, 2012. Under the
Energy Law, the Company is a natural gas suppliesy®perator, which ensures uninterrupted andrsatigral
gas supply to customers in Latvia, avoiding ovetfaf system capacity.

Over the reporting year, the users were suppligth wi451.9 million m of natural gas. In comparison with
2012, natural gas sales ir? fiell by 0.8%. The decrease of natural gas saksrsed from the record-high air
temperature at the end of the reporting year, dsasethe investments of heat supply companiefiénuse of
renewable energy sources and partial replacemdassil fuels with woodchip. The changes in natgas retail
prices in 2013 compared with 2012 were influencedlanges in oil product quotations at the stoatharge,
currency rates and gas supply flows.

In 2013, natural gas was sold to customers fomdtearal gas sale end-user tariffs set in the résoliNo.247
“On natural gas supply tariffs of the Joint Stockn@pany “Latvijas Gze” of the PUC Council dated July 24,
2008, which under the resolution No.258 “On thecprdure of application of resolution No.247” of tR&IC
Council dated June 2, 2010 are exclusive of exeiseAs from July 1, 2011, natural gas used asimgdtel is
applied an excise tax of 12 LVL/thsd.*if17.07 EUR/thsd. f), while natural gas used as motor fuel — 70
LVL/thsd. nT (99.60 EUR/thsd. ).

The applied differential natural gas sale end-taeffs consist of two parts: fixed regulated seeviariffs and
the natural gas sale price, which changes wittep sf 5 LVL/thsd. m (7.11 EUR/thsd. M depending on the
actual natural gas purchase costs. For users witlhiah natural gas consumption over 25 thousafdtine
applicable natural gas sale end-user tariff changesthly, whereas for users with the annual natges
consumption up to 25 thsd. *m once in six months, i. e., on January 1 and July

In 2013, the Company sold natural gas and provégedices to customers for 403.4 million. (EUR 57diom),
which is a decrease by 5.6% year-on-year; the esgeefexcluding the administrative costs) amourdeld\
365.5 million (EUR 520.1 millin) and the gross prdd LVL 37.9 million (EUR 53.9 million). The chaes in
the structure of net turnover resulted from charigegatural gas sales volume and the natural daspsize, as
well as the increased efficiency of usage of th&ukalns Underground Gas Storage Facility (hereinafte
In¢ukalns UGS).

Over the season of 2013, 2.14 billiodl of natural gas was injected into théukalns UGS and 1.86 billionin
were withdrawn. Compared with the season of 2 vblume of natural gas injected fell by 2.7% wi82.3
million m® of gas remaining at the end of the 2012/2013 hgateason, while volume of natural gas withdrawn
fell by 18.4%.

The Company completed the year 2013 with a neitgbf.VL 22.6 million (EUR 32.2 million), which i4 VL
0.3 million (EUR 0.4 million) or 1.3% below that @012 with LVL 22.9 million (EUR 32.6 million). Thaet
profitability was 5.6% in 2013 and 5.4% in 2012.

In 2013, the Company invested LVL 19.8 million (EW2R.2 million) in the modernization of the gas slypp
system and the creation of new fixed assets. 44flite total investment was spent on the moderoizatf gas
transmission pipeline system, 29% — on the expansidistribution networks and the renewal of fixesbets,
and 24.3% - on the improvement of operation sadety the modernization of equipment at théukalns UGS.
The total number of gas-enabled objects at theoétite year reached 443.3 thousand.

The year 2013 saw completion of the EERP-INTG-RFL project. On August 17, 2010, the Company
received the resolution No.C(2010) 5554 of the paem Commission (hereinafter the EC) dated Aug8st 1
2010 on the award of a financial grant to Action.BEBPR-2009-INTg-RF-LV-LT-12.566527/ 12.566531/
S12.566541/ SI2.566543 under the EC Regulation 68/209 on gas and electricity interconnectionghWhis
resolution, the modernization of 15 wells at théukalns UGS and the construction of a gas passadgr time
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Report of the Board of Directors(continued)

1. Activity of the Company in the reporting year(continued)

Daugava river and a pig receiver were granted insillion (EUR 10 million) to stabilize natural gaspplies
between Lithuania and Latvia in emergency situation

The planned jobs were completed in 2011, where@0ir? two additional wells of the dnkalns UGS were
modernized for the funding granted but not yet §p&he total costs of project implementation reacB&JR
24.1 million, incl. EUR 16.2 million for the modemation of wells at the Kukalns UGS and EUR 7.9 million
for the construction of a gas passage under thg®auriver and a pig receiver. The last EUR 3 onillof the

funding granted by the EC was received on Augug013.

The reporting period saw completion of the modextiin of eight wells, with Ls 3.4 million (EUR 4r8illion)
spent, and reception of the equipment necessathdacapital repair of further 27 wells in 2014018.

The elimination of damage found during the diagicssbf gas transmission pipelines is in progresé. 4.9
million (EUR 7.0 million) has been spent on theaeation of gas pipelines and the modernization alf/e/
units. The year 2013 also marked completion ofréwnstruction of the GMS “Korneti”, which includeide
construction of a flow regulator and cost LVL 0.8llimn (EUR 1.1 million) in total, and beginning dhe
construction of new passages of gas transmissjoelipes Pskov-Riga and Izborskélkalns UGS across the
Gauja river with the shifting of inverted siphonsdacables to a safer, flood-proof location using $foped
drilling method. The job is due for completion até 2016, and the total project costs are estintaté&/L 9.4
million (EUR 13.4 million), including LVL 1.5 milbn (EUR 2.1 million) already spent in 2013.

In 2013, LVL 0.9 million (EUR 1.3 million) was spean the construction of gas distribution pipelires LVL
1.4 million (EUR 2.0 million) on the renovation exXisting gas pipelines.

The heat-insulation and reconstruction of engimgerand technological buildings and constructionsnis
progress. LVL 1.6 million (EUR 2.3 million) has bespent for this purpose, including the renovatérihe
administrative building and the construction oftomser service centres in Daugavpils and Bauska.

Company’s main ratios:

2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000

Revenue 403 384 427 413 353 338 573 963 608 154 7502
EBITDA 47 738 53 584 50 102 67 925 76 244 71290
EBITDA % 11.83% 12.54% 14.18% 11.83% 12.54% 14.18%
Profit from operating
activities 24 472 24 448 28 888 34 821 34 787 41 105
Profitability of operating
activities (%) 6.07% 5.72% 8.18% 6.07% 5.72% 8.18%
Profit for the year 20 702 21201 25 7p9 29 457 18D 36 610
Net profitability (%) 5.13% 4.96% 7.28% 5.13% 496% 7.28%
Total liquidity 1.77 1.94 2.14 1.77 1.94 2.15
Total assets 610 193 582 793 463 777 868 226 829 24 659 895
Equity 427 811 426 795 345 537 608 721 607 275 68EL
Return on assets (ROA) 3.47% 4.05% 5.76% 3.47% %4.05 5.76%
Return on equity (ROE) 4.84% 5.49% 7.52% 4.84% %.49 7.52%
Number of shares 39 900 39 900 39 900 39 900 39 900 39 900
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Report of the Board of Directors(continued)

1. Activity of the Company in the reporting year(continued)

2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
LVL LVL LVL EUR EUR EUR
Profit per share (EPS) 0.519 0.531 0.645 0.738 @.75 0.918
P/E 12.72 11.31 8.76 12.72 11.31 8.76
BV 10.72 10.70 8.66 15.26 15.22 12.32
P/BV 0.62 0.56 0.65 0.62 0.56 0.65
Dividends per share (DPS)* 0.506 0.500 0.600 0.72 710 0.85
Return on dividends
(dividends per share/ profit
per share) 0.98 0.94 0.93 0.98 0.94 0.93
Share price at the end of the
period 6.60 6.01 5.65 9.39 8.55 8.04

* The Board of the Company will propose to the Galuto pay dividends in amount of LVL 0.506 (EUR/Q)
for each share for year 2013.

2. Research and development measures

In order to ensure uninterrupted natural gas sufgplysers and safe operation of the gas supplgmsyst long
term, the Company has developed the “Plan of meador the improvement of safety of the gas suppstem

of the Joint Stock Company “Latvijasa@®” 2010-2015". It has been prepared based onahelusions made by
the Russian companies “Gazobezopasnostj” and “aestraz”, the institutes “VNIIGAZ” and “Giprospecgaz
as well as the German companies “Pipeline EngingeBmbH”, “Untergrundspeicher und Geotechnologie —
Systeme GmbH”, “E.ON Engineering GmbH”, “E.ON Russgdnternational AG” and other partners regarding
the technical condition of the equipment and moidation options. The plan of measures envisagessinvent

in safety improvement for the total amount of LVQ.6 million (EUR 72 million).

In 2011, the OJSC ,Gazprom VNIIGAZ” prepared a peogme of modernization of thedukalns UGS up to
2025. The concept covers two development scenariadéth and without increasing the natural gas gfera
capacity. The projected costs are LVL 253 milli@JR 360 million) or LVL 133.5 million (EUR 190 mitin)
respectively. Based on this document, the Compasyphepared the project “The modernisation and trav
Inéukalns UGS” and project “Increasing the Capacitylmterconnection between Latvia and Lithuania” in
cooperation with JSC “Lietuvos Dujos”, and subnuittkem to European Commission for inclusion int® likt

of European projects, as it is defined by the Ratiph on Infrastructure. Both of the projects areluded into
the initial regional list of European projects.dase of positive decision, it is possible to atttae resources
from the European Foundation for the realizatiothefprojects.

3. Financial Risk Management

The operation of the Company is exposed to a waétfinancial risks, including credit risk and kg of
fluctuation of foreign currency rates and interagés. The management of the Company strives tonizia the
negative impact of potential financial risks on fimancial state of the Company.

The Company is not directly subject to the risklo€tuation of foreign currency rates as the gazipase price
is set in USD and subsequently recalculated int®R Buhereas gas sale tariffs are set in lats (L\BAextlements
for the supplied gas are made in EUR. The lats imtpegged to the euro rate since January 1, 2685,
fluctuations of the LVL/EUR rate are limited andlikely to have a notable influence on further fingh
results. Gas purchase price changes in USD depgmdirthe oil products quotation are covered byRhk-
approved natural gas sale tariffs, which to a @ergxtent cover the fluctuations of both the LVL/Eland
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Report of the Board of Directors(continued)
3. Financial Risk Management(continued)

EUR/USD rate. The risk of fluctuation of foreignroency rates as concerns debts to suppliers is lagher
control by holding a considerable part of cashtassedeposits of the respective currency.

As of the end of the reporting year, the Comparg/d@loans, thus it is not subject to interest riste

The financial assets subject to credit risk bakiaansist of customer debts and cash. The Comjzexposed
to a considerable degree of credit risk becausatable share of the net turnover applies to a dichitumber of
customers. Four of the Company’s customers maki §1.5% (in 2012- 48.6%) of sales, and one of these
debtors as at December 31, 2013 comprised 29.5%%3ih 2012) of the total amount of customer detits,
second and third major debtors 6.9% and 4.5% résphc(9.8% and 5.4% in 2012).

The Company has introduced and observes a cretlitypthat envisages selling goods on credit only to
customers with a good credit history, controllihg amount of credit set for each customer.

The customer debts are shown at their recoveradievThe Company’s partners in monetary transastaye
local financial institutions with a proper credistory.

The Company observes cautious liquidity risk manazg@, ensuring sufficient availability of creditsmurces
for meeting liabilities in due time.

4. Post balance sheet events

There are no subsequent events since the lasbtitite reporting year that would have a significaffect on
the financial position of the Company as at Decar3ie 2013.

5. Distribution of the Profit of 2013 as Recommendkby the Board

Distribution of the profit is made based on netfpprhich is reported in the Company’s financiahte&iments
prepared in accordance with the Law on Annual Rspafrthe Republic of Latvia.

Difference with the net profit shown in those fic&l statements is LVL 1.9 million (EUR 2.7 millipand it
arouse as a result of different accounting treatni@ndisposed revalued property, plant and equignaad
related deferred income tax adjustment.

2013 2013
LVL EUR
Profit of the reporting year 22595513 32150519
Share of profit not available for distribution (eatized deferred tax gain related
to the revaluation of fixed assets) (1789 351) (2546 017)
Share of profit available for distribution 20 806 162 29 604 502
Suggested distribution of profit:
Dividends to shareholders (89.4%) 20 190 153 28 728 000
Dividends per share (LVL/1 share) 0,506 0,72
Statutory reserves 616 009 876 502

Some members of the Council and the Board of thegamy hold shares and interests at numerous coegpani
registered in the Registry of Enterprises of thpuddic of Latvia, and they perform managerial fumes there.
Over the reporting year, the Company has not erdctrainsactions of considerable amount (excepthiose
listed in the financial statement) with these comes.

Information of the shares of the Company held bynivers of the Board and the Council of the Company i
available at the Board of the Company.
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6. Shares and shareholders

Composition of shareholdérsf the Company as on December 31, 2013 and preyietiods:

Shareholder 31.12.2013| 31.12.201231.12.2011
“E.ON Ruhrgas International” GmbH 47.2% 4712% 47.2%
“Gazprom” AAS 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
“Itera Latvija” SIA 16.0% 16.0% 16.0%
Other 2.89 2.8% 2.8%
TOTAL 100.0% 100.0% 100.0p%6

Distribution of holdings according to holding graugs on December 31, 2013:

2.8%

I Energétika m Citas

List of shareholders as on December 31, 2013:

Members of the Board Number of shares

Chairman of the Board Adriansafdis 417
\Vice-Chairman of the Board Jorg Tumat 0
\Vice-Chairman of the Board Alexander Mihejev 0
Member of the Board Anda Ulpe 729
Member of the Board Gints Freibergs 416

Members of the Council Number of shares

Chairman of the Council Kirill Seleznev 0
Vice-chairman of the Council Juris Savickis 0
Vice-chairman of the Council Achim Saul 0
Member of the Council Matthias Kohlenbach 0
Member of the Council Rainer Link 0
Member of the Council Mario Nullmeier 0
Member of the Council Uwe Fip 0
Member of the Council Vlada Rusakova 0
Member of the Council Nikolay Dubik 0
Member of the Council Jelena Karpel 0
Member of the Council Jelena Mihailova 0

Since February 15, 1999 the shares of the Compangueoted at the NASDAQ OMX Riga Stock Exchange. It

share trade code since August 1, 2004 is GZE1R.

! Shareholders owning not less than 5% of capital
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Report of the Board of Directors(continued)

6. Shares and shareholderéontinued)

ISIN

Stock exchange
List

Nominal value
Total shares
Shares traded
Liquidity provide

code

r

LV0000100899
GZE1R
Second list
1.00 LVL
39 900 000
25 328 520
None

Shares price of the Company as on December 31, &@d revious periods:

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Shares price (LVL):

First 6.110 5.895 4.8000 4.57 4,55

Highest 6.930 6.350 7.000 6.00 6.00

Lowest 6.030 5.380 4,601 4.57 3.32

Average 6.360 5.863 5.320 5.15 431

Last 6.600D 6.010 5.651 4.90 4.10

Change 8.02% 1.95% 17.73% 7.22% -9.89%
Number of deals 1479 1767 1284 988 1267
Share turnover, number 121774 168 115 218 132 85 493 64 319
Share turnover, million LVL 0.774 0.986 1.160 0.440 0.277
Capitalisation (million LVL) 263.340 239.799 225.475 195.510 163.590

Source: NASDAQ OMX Riga

The capitalization value of the Company on Decentier 2013 reached LVL 263.34 million (EUR 374.7
million) — by 23.54 million (EUR 33.5 million) moréhan at the end of previous reporting period. Bgre
market capitalization of the Company took tfigplace among companies quoted at the NASDAQ OMXRIG
and the ¥ place among companies quoted at the NASDAQ OMXiB&tock Exchange (20125'and 4" place
respectively).

LG share prices OMX Riga Gl un OMX Baltic Gl indelxanges (01.01.2011. - 31.12.2013.):

| OMXR = OMXBGI  m GZEIR
150%
140% ni e
130% ! i uﬁ’lrJIML[ iy
{‘_.TI’ bl b g 4V T ,..w'“ﬂ
" Lﬂ 1 ¥
120% } 1 i ‘ HMMJ,J i
! I e
o | T 4,
100% 1‘; :
f
0%
a0t
0111 D0E1 01081 010142 010542 01082 010143 010593 010943
Source: NASDAQ OMX Riga
Indexes/shares 01.01.2011.]31.12.2013 Change|
OMX Riga 393.58 460.13 16.92%
OMX Baltic Gl 421.36 463.36 10.21%
GZEI1R (LVL) 4.9( 6.6( 34.69%
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Report of the Board of Directors(continued)

7. Future prospects

Having regard of the investments in the improvenadrthe system operation safety, the expansiomefgas
pipeline network and the attraction of new custamef previous years and the reporting year, as aell
considering the situation in the fuel market of Viat the Board of the Company believes that in 2@ie!
Company will continue successful development akd tastable place in the fuel supply market.

Chairman of the Board A.abis

Board meeting minutes No. 18 (2014)
Riga, April 29, 2014
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Directors of JSC “Latvijasage” (hereafter — the Company) is responsible fergheparation of
the financial statements of the Company.

The financial statements on pages 15 to 61 areapedpn accordance with the accounting recordssautce
documents and present fairly the financial positibithe Company as of 31 December 2013 and thétsesf
its operations and cash flows for the year endeB&dember 2013.

The financial statements are prepared in accordaitbenternational Financial Reporting Standardsadopted

by the European Union on a going concern basis.répfate accounting policies have been applied on a
consistent basis. Prudent and reasonable judgraadtestimates have been made by the Board oftDisdn

the preparation of the financial statements.

The Board of Directors of the Company is respoesibl the maintenance of proper accounting recdtus,
safeguarding of the Company’s assets and the ptiemeand detection of fraud and other irregulasitie the
Company. The Board of Directors is also responsibleoperating the Companiyn compliance with the
legislation of the Republic of Latvia.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

Adrians Davis
Chairman of the Board

Riga, April 29, 2014
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

pwc

Translation from Latvian original*

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of JSC “Latvijas Gaze”
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JSC “Latvijas Gaze” set out on
pages 15 to 61 of the accompanying annual report, which comprise the balance sheet as of
31 December 2013 and the income statement and the statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers SIA, Kr. Valdemara iela 21-21, Riga, LV-1010, Latvia, LV40003142793
T: +371 6709 4400, F: +371 6783 0055, www.pwe.lv
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

i T

pwe

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as of 31 December 2013, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have read the Report of the Board of Directors for 2013 set out on pages 5 to 11 of the
accompanying annual report for 2013 and did not identify material inconsistencies between
the financial information contained in the Report of the Board of Directors and that
contained in the financial statements for 2013.

Ilandra Lejina
Member of the Board

Riga, Latvia
29 April 2014

PricewaterhouseCoopers SIA
Certified audit company
Licence No. 5

VTV ![.'/;/-,-; b
Lolita Capkevida

Certified auditor in charge
Certificate No. 120

* This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Latvian, All possible care has been taken to
ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of interpretation of information,
views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this translation
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Trade receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Current income tax receivable
Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Share capital

Share premium
Revaluation reserve

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Accruals for post-employment
benefits and other employee benefii
Deferred income

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Deferred income
Other payables

Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES

Note

21

22
11

11
12

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"

31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.

LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000
397 863 402 397 566 108 572 559
1961 2119 2790 3015
6 2113 9 3 007

399 830 406 629 568 907 578 581
130 136 93 276 185 167 132 719
27 734 57 253 39 462 81 464
1186 1734 1688 2 467
27725 1317 39 448 1875
23 582 22 584 33 554 32134
210 363 176 164 299 319 250 659
610 193 582 793 868 226 829 240
39 900 39 900 56 773 56 773
14 320 14 320 20 376 20 376
265 732 267 362 378 103 380 422
80 040 78 639 113 887 111 893
27 819 26 574 39 582 37 811
427 811 426 795 608 721 607 275
39672 40 237 56 447 57 252
3825 4 348 5442 6 187
20 215 20 363 28 763 28 974
63 712 64 948 90 652 92 413
91114 61 440 129 643 87421
816 794 1161 1130

26 740 28 816 38 049 41 001
118 670 91 050 168 853 129 552
182 382 155 998 259 505 221 965
610 193 582 793 868 226 829 240

The notes on pages 20 to 61 are an integral pénese financial statements.
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Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 201 3

Note 2013 2012 2013 2012
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR'000 EUR'000

Revenue 13 403 384 427 413 573 963 608 154
Cost of sales 14 (365491) (394693) (520046) (561597)
Gross profit 37 893 32720 53917 46 557
Administrative expenses 15 (12 664) (9 084) (18 019) (12 926)
Other income 16 3179 5383 4524 7 660
Other expenses 17 (3 936) (4 571) (5 601) (6 504)
Operating profit 24 472 24 448 34 821 34 787
Finance income 19 109 286 155 407
Profit before income tax 24 581 24 734 34 976 35194
Income tax expense 21 (3879) (3533) (5 519) (5 027)
Profit for the year 20 702 21 201 29 457 30 167
Earnings per share LVL LVL EUR EUR
Basic 23a 0.519 0,531 0.738 0,756
Diluted 23a 0.519 0,531 0.738 0,756

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDE D 31 DECEMBER 2013

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Revaluation of property, plant and
equipment - gross 311 98 820 443 140 608
Deferred income tax liability arising on
the revaluation of property, plant and

equipment 21 47 (14 823) (67) (21 091)
Other comprehensive income for the

year, net of tax 264 83 997 376 119517
Profit for the year 20 702 21 201 29 457 30 167
Total comprehensive income for the

year 20 966 105 198 29 833 149 684

The notes on pages 20 to 61 are an integral paénese financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 15 to 61 wersoapgd by the Board of Directors and were signedt®behalf
by:

Adrians [avis Anda Ulpe
Chairman of the Board Board Member
April 29, 2014
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Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1 DECEMBER 2013

Share Share Revaluation Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserves earnings Total
LVL'0O00  LVL'000 LVL'0O00 LVL'000 LVL'0O00  LVL'000

Balance as at 31 December

2011 39 900 14 320 185 105 76 883 29 329 345 537
Other comprehensive income

Revaluation of property, plant

and equipment - gross - - 98 820 - - 98 820
Deferred income tax liability

arising on the revaluation of

property, plant and equipment - - (14 823) - - (14 823)
Disposal of revalued

property, plant and equipment - - (2 048) - 2048 -
Deferred income tax on

disposal of revalued property,

plant and equipment - - 307 - (307) -
Total other comprehensive

income - - 82 256 - 1741 83 997
Profit for the year - - - - 21201 21201
Total comprehensive

income for 2012 - - 82 256 - 22942 105 198
Transactions with owners

Transfers to reserves - - - 1756 (1 756) -
Dividends for 2011 - - - - (23 940) (23 940)
Rounding difference - - 1 - (1) -
Balance as at 31 December

2012 39 900 14 320 267 362 78 639 26 574 426 795

Other comprehensive income

Revaluation of property, plant

and equipment - gross - - 311 - - 311
Deferred income tax liability

arising on the revaluation of

property, plant and equipment - - 47 - - 47
Disposal of revalued
property, plant and equipment - - (2 228) - 2228 -

Deferred income tax on
disposal of revalued property,

plant and equipment - - 334 - (334) -
Total other comprehensive

income - - (1 630) - 1894 264
Profit for the year - - - - 20702 20702
Total comprehensive

income for 2013 - - (1 630) - 22 596 20 966
Transactions with owners

Transfers to reserves - - - 1401 (1401) -
Dividends for 2012 - - - - (19 950) (19 950)
Balance as at 31 December

2013 39 900 14 320 265 732 80 040 27 819 427 811

The notes on pages 20 to 61 are an integral pénese financial statements,
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Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1 DECEMBER 2013(CONTINUED)

Balance as at 31 December
2011

Other comprehensive income
Revaluation of property, plant
and equipment - gross
Deferred income tax liability
arising on the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment
Disposal of revalued

property, plant and equipment
Deferred income tax on
disposal of revalued property,
plant and equipment

Total other comprehensive
income
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive
income for 2012
Transactions with owners
Transfers to reserves
Dividends for 2011
Rounding difference

Balance as at 31 December
2012

Other comprehensive income
Revaluation of property, plant
and equipment - gross
Deferred income tax liability
arising on the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment
Disposal of revalued

property, plant and equipment
Deferred income tax on
disposal of revalued property,
plant and equipment

Total other comprehensive
income
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive
income for 2013
Transactions with owners
Transfers to reserves
Dividends for 2012
Rounding difference

Balance as at 31 December
2013

Share Share Revaluation Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserves earnings Total
EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000
56 773 20 376 263 381 109 395 41730 491 655
- 140 608 - - 140 608
- - (21 091) - - (21 091)
(2914) - 2914 -
- - 437 - (437) -
- - 117 040 - 2477 119 517
- - - - 30 167 30 167
- - 117 040 - 32 644 149 684
- 2499 (2 499) -
- - - - (34 064) (34 064)
- - 1 1) - -
56 773 20 376 380 422 111 893 37811 607 275
- 443 - - 443
- - (67) - - (67)
(3170) - 3170 -
- 476 - (476) -
- - (2 318) - 2694 376
- - - - 29 457 29 457
- - (2 318) - 32151 29 833
- - 1993 (1 993) -
- - - - (28 386) (28 386)
- - () 1 @) 1)
56 773 20 376 378 103 113 887 39 582 608 721

Dividends are distributed and transfers to otheemees are made based upon profits and retainathgaras per
statutory financial statements prepared under hatéccounting regulations. Changes in other resecaa be
made only with shareholders’ approval. Revaluat@serve and share premium cannot be distributeivadends

to shareholders.

The notes on pages 20 to 61 are an integral paénesé financial statements.
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Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEM BER 2013

Note 2013 2012 2013 2012
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 24 69 245 32843 98 527 46 731
Interest received 272 713 387 1015
Income tax paid 21 (3 608) (3 557) (5 134) (5 061)
Net cash generated from operating

activities 65 909 29 999 93 780 42 685

Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and

equipment (19 055) (18 337) (27 113) (26 091)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and

equipment 55 69 78 98
Purchases of intangible assets (751) (851) (1 068) (1 211)
EC funding received 2129 1380 3029 1964
Received term deposits - 9 207 - 13 100
Deposited on term (27 339) - (38 900) -
Net cash used in investing activities (44 961) (8 532) (63 974) (12 140)
Cash flows used in financing activities

Dividends paid (19 950) (23 940) (28 386) (34 064)
Net cash used in from financing

activities (19 950) (23 940) (28 386) (34 064)

Net increase /(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents during the year 998 (2 473) 1420 (3519)

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 22 584 25 057 32134 35 653

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year 8 23 582 22 584 33 554 32134

The notes on pages 20 to 61 are an integral pénese financial statements.
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Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 INCORPORATION AND ACTIVITIES

The Company was re-organised on January 31, 1984aast stock company wholly owned by the Governira

the Republic of Latvia. The Company was formerlgtate enterprise, which had its assets transfaoeahd
obligations assumed by the joint stock companycooedance with the law. Since 15 February, 199%taes of
the Company are quoted on NASDAQ OMX Riga StockHaxge. The registered office of the Company is 20
Vagonu Street, Riga, Latvia.

The Company is involved in import and sales of ratgas in the territory of Latvia as well as syppf gas
transmission and storage services to foreign compaiihe Company is the sole supplier of naturaliga.atvia.
The service territory of the Company has a poputatif approximately 2 million.

The applied differential natural gas sale endf&gbnsist of two parts: fixed tariffs for reguldtservices and the
natural gas sale price, which changes with a st&ld/L/thous.n? depending on the actual natural gas purchase
costs. The tariffs of gas sold to corporate andilretistomers are set by the Public Utilities Cossiun (PUC) of

the Republic of Latvia. Changes to tariffs are abemeed by PUC based on applications of the Compardyin
accordance with the methodology approved by PU@ idtural gas sale end tariff applied to users with
annual consumption volume over 25 thousand® simanges every month, whereas to users with theiaénn
consumption up to 25 thousand f¥nonce in half year, on January 1 and July 1.

During 2013 the average number of persons emplbydtle Company was 1 267 (2012: 1 275).
These financial statements have been approvedebgdhrd of Directors on April 29, 2014.
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in theparation of these financial statements are sebelotv. These
policies have been consistently applied to allysars presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have bespaped in accordance with International FinanRigborting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFR8depted by the EU). Due to the European Union’s
endorsement procedure, the standards and inteipretanot approved for use in the European Unioa ar
presented in this note as they may have impacinamdial statements of the Company in the followpgiods if
endorsed.

The financial statements have been prepared uhdéistorical cost convention, as modified by tieaftuation of
property, plant and equipment as disclosed in tb@Anting policies Note (d) below.

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith IFRS requires the use of estimates andraptons that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liasliind disclosure of contingent assets and liaisilét the date of
the financial statements and the reported amodmsvenues and expenses during the reporting pefilough
these estimates are based on Management’s bestedymnof current events and actions, actual resititaately
may differ from those. Significant accounting esttes are described in Note 28.

The following new and amended IFRSs and intergmtatbecame effective in 2013 (approved by European
Union (EU)).

IFRS 13, “Fair value measurement” improved consistency and reduced complexity by iding a revised
definition of fair value and a single source of failue measurement and disclosure requirementgs®racross

IFRSs (Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftefanuary 2013)
Amendment to IAS 19, “Employee benefits”(effective for annual periods beginning on or mftelanuary 2013).
Among other changesctaarial gains and losses’ are renamed ‘remeasutsmand will be recognised

immediately in ‘other comprehensive income’ (O@\gtuarial gains and losses will no longer be defdmusing the
corridor approach or recognised in profit or Io0Bemeasurements recognised in OCI will not be reclythrough

profit or loss in subsequent periods
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Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation(continued)

The following new and amended IFRSs and interpmetatbecame effective in 2013, but are not rele¥anthe
Company'’s operations and did not have an impadhese financial statements.

Annual improvements 2011(effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2013);

Amendment to IFRS 1, “First time adoption”, on govenment loans (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013);

Amendment to IFRS 7, “Financial instruments: Disclsures”, on offsetting financial assets and financla
liabilities (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftddanuary 2013);

Amendment to IAS 12, “Income taxes” on deferred taxeffective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 2012 but endorsed by EU for annual pebedining on or after 1 January 2013);

IFRIC 20, “Stripping costs in the production phaseof a surface mine” (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013);

Amendment to IAS 1 ,Presentation of Financial Statments” (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2013).

Certain new standards and interpretations have heelished that become effective for the accounpieigods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 or later pelsoand which is relevant to the Company or are ywgit
endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements(effective for annual periods beginning on or aftetanuary 2013,
endorsed by EU for annual periods beginning orfter & January 2014);

IFRS 11, “Joint arrangements” (effective for annual periods beginning on or afteJanuary 2013 although
endorsed by EU for annual periods beginning orfter & January 2014);

IFRS 12, “Disclosures of interests in other entitig” (effective for annual periods beginning on or mtteJanuary
2013 although endorsed by EU for annual periodénbétg on or after 1 January 2014);

Amendments to IFRS 10, 11 and 12 on transition guahce (mandatory application for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with earlypdidm allowed, endorsed by EU for annual periodgifo@ng on

or after 1 January 2014);

IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Account” (effective for annual periods beginning on ot afte]January 2016, not
yet endorsed by the EU)

IAS 27 (revised in 2011) “Separate financial stateamts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or afte
January 2013 although endorsed by EU for annu@gebeginning on or after 1 January 2014);

IAS 28 (revised in 2011) “Associates and joint ventes” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 2013 although endorsed by EU for annu#@gebeginning on or after 1 January 2014);

Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee benefits plans/{effective for annual periods beginning on or afteduly
2014, not yet endorsed by the EU);

Amendments to IAS 32 “Financial instruments: Presetation”, on offsetting financial assets and finanal
liabilities (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftddanuary 2014, not yet endorsed by the EU);
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 for invésent entities (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014, not yet endorsed b¥the

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement” (effective date to be determined, not yet
endorsed by the EU);

Amendments to IAS 36 “Impairment of assets”(effective for annual periods beginning on or aftedanuary
2014);

Amendments to IAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recogition and measurement”, on novation of derivatives
and hedge accountindeffective for annual periods beginning on or aftetanuary 2014);

Annual improvements 2012(effective for annual periods beginning on or iafteJuly 2014, not yet endorsed by
the EU);

Annual improvements 2013(effective for annual periods beginning on or iafteJuly 2014, not yet endorsed by
the EU);

IFRIC 21 “Levies” (effective for annual periods beginning on or mfteJanuary 2014, not yet endorsed by the
EUV).
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Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner censisith the internal reporting provided to theeftoperating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-makéro is responsible for allocating resources argbssing
performance of the operating segments, has beatifidd as the board that makes strategic decisiBoard uses
profit before tax as a profit measure of segments.

The Company has five operating segments: gas tiasem (a type of power supply, which includes
transportation of natural gas through high-presgaeline to deliver it to respective distribut®ystem or directly
to a consumer, except sale of natural gas), gaageo(natural gas storage at théukalns Underground Gas
Storage Facility), gas distribution (a type of powepply, which includes transportation of natwyak through
high-, moderate- and low-pressure gas line, exsalfgt of natural gas), gas realization (a type afgyosupply,
which includes purchasing of natural gas for redion and sale to natural gas to consumers) arefr strvices.
Division into segments corresponds to technologitatess of gas supply and is required for analysisiriffs
and expenses.

(c) Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of themPany are measured using the currency of the pyima
economic environment in which the Company operétee functional currency’). The financial stateneiare
presented in Latvian Lats (LVL), which is the Compa functional and presentation currency. In adeoce with

the requirements of the NASDAQ OMX RIGA all balascare also presented in Euro (EUR). For disclosure
purposes the translation into EUR is based on thgad exchange rate as set by the Bank of Lafdietermined

by Bank of Latvia as of December 30, 2004 repogingsolution of the Council of Bank of Latvia) ring period
from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 — EUR/LVEUR = LVL 0.702804).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated imoftinctional currency using the exchange rategagneg at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gaididosses resulting from the settlement of suchstations and
from the translation at year-end exchange rateaasfetary assets and liabilities denominated inidoreurrencies
are recognised in the income statement.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Buildings, gas transmission and distribution systema equipment are stated at fair value, basedeviodic

valuation less subsequent depreciation or impaitrolearge. Revaluation shall be made with sufficiegfularity

to ensure the carrying amount does not differ neterfrom that which would be determined usingr faalue at
the end of the reporting period. Revaluation isfqrened every 5 years using depreciated replaceroesi
method. All other property, plant and equipmentl(iding land and buffer gas) are stated at hisébigost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment chargetokiisl cost includes expenditure that is direetiributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Assets purchased, but not yet ready for intendedausunder installation process are included inefssinder
construction.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s ngrafinount or recognized as separate asset, aspaigpep only
when it is probable that future economic benefisoaiated with the item will flow to the Companydahe cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other reppaird maintenance are charged to the income statelueng the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaoaof building, gas transmission and distributgystem and
equipment are credited to Revaluation reserve amedtolders’ equity. Decreases that offset previnoseases of
the same asset are charged against revaluatiorveedieectly in equity; any further decreases drarged to the
income statement. The revaluation surplus is teared to retained earnings on the retirement guodial of the
asset.
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Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Property, plant and equipment(continued)

Land and assets under construction are not depedciBepreciation on other assets is calculatatgubie straight-

line method to allocate their cost or revalued amitio their residual values over their estimatséful lives, as
follows:

Years
Buildings 60 - 100
Gas transmission and distribution system 30 -
Machinery and equipment 5-20
Furniture and fittings 5-10
Computers and equipment 3.33

The Company'’s policy is to capitalize property,mland equipment with cost exceeding LVL 150 (EUR)2and
useful life exceeding 1 year.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives arewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the endaah reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immegliato its recoverable amount if the asset’s cagyamount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount ({fgte

Costs of borrowing to finance assets under constru@nd other direct charges related to the paeicasset
under construction are capitalised, during the tiha¢ is required to complete and prepare the &sisés intended
use, as part of the cost of the asset. Capitalisaii the borrowing costs is suspended during eddrperiods in
which active developments are interrupted.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by aamgpcarrying amount with proceeds and are chatgedte
income statement during the period in which theyiacurred. When revalued assets are sold, the rinncluded
in Revaluation reserve are transferred to retagadings.

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets primarily consist of softwarefices and patents. Intangible assets have atisétel life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Aisadion is calculated using the straight-line noetho allocate
the cost of intangible assets over their usefiddivGenerally intangible assets are amortised av@eriod of 5
years.

) Impairment of non-financial assets

All Company’s non-financial assets have a finitefuklife (except land). Assets that are subjecirwortization or
depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenewemes or changes in circumstances indicate thatdineing
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment lsssecognized for the amount by which the asset'syicey
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The redoiecaanount is the higher of an asset’s fair vakss Icosts to
sell and value in use. For the purpose of asse$sipgirment, assets are grouped at the lowestdefeelwhich
there are separately identifiable cash flows (agesterating units). Non-financial assets that saffampairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairnagreach reporting date.

(g) Financial asses

The Company classifies all its financial assetk@ans and receivables. The classification dependfi® purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Manaent determines the classification of its finaheissets at
initial recognition and re-evaluates this desigmatit every reporting date. Receivables are noivatere financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments thatatequoted in an active market. They are incluthedurrent
assets, except for assets with maturities grehter 12 months after the end of the reporting peridiese are
classified as non-current assets. Receivabledassified as ‘trade receivables’, ‘other currersteds’ and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet (Notesa@@)2(j)).
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Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Inventories

The cost of natural gas indukalns UGS and in gas transmission pipelines isrdehed separately using the first-
in first-out (FIFO) method based on total naturak gnovement. Materials, spare parts, gas metersotmet
inventories cost is determined using the weighteetage method. The cost of natural gas comprisssafogas
purchased which is recognized and charged to ttmie statement in the period when incurred.

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost agtdr@alisable value. Net realisable value is thanaged selling
price in the ordinary course of business, lessiegiple variable selling expenses. When the netsadae value of
inventories is lower than its purchase price, Biovis are created to reduce the value of invergtdietheir
realisable value.

(i) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at ¥aiue and subsequently caried at amortised cast) ke effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.rAvision for impairment of trade receivables isabtished when
there is objective evidence that the Company vatl e able to collect all amounts due accordinthéooriginal

terms of trade receivables. Significant financidficllties of the debtor, probability that the deb will enter

bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and defaualtlelinquency in payments are considered indisatmat the
trade receivables are impaired. The amount of theigion is the difference between the asset’syaagramount
and the present value of estimated future cashsflaiscounted at the original effective interes¢.rdhe amount
of the provision is recognised in the income staeim

If, in subsequent period, the amount of impairntess decreases and the decrease can be relatethabyeto an
event occurring after the impairment was recogni@eth as improvement of the debtor’s credit ratirige
reversal of the previously recognized impairmess|is recognized in the income statement.

()) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on halahcba of current accounts with banks and depabsits at
call with banks with original term less than 90 sland other short-term highly liquid investmentbjck can be
easily converted to cash and are not subject offgignt change in value.

(k) Share capital and dividend authorised

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Increatentternal costs directly attributable to the esof new shares,
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of taxmfriie proceeds. Dividend distribution to the Conyman
shareholders is recognized as a liability in then@any’s financial statements in the period in whicé dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

() Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair valuet of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings aressquently
stated at amortised cost; any difference betweemptbceeds (net of transaction costs) and the netitlemvalue is
recognised in the income statement over the peobbdhe borrowings using the effective interest roeth
Borrowings are classified as current liabilitiedass the Company has an unconditional right tordefttlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the ala sheet date.

(m) Deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises curredtdeferred tax. Tax is recognised in the incoméeestant,

except to the extent that it relates to items racmgl in other comprehensive income or directlgduity. In this

case the tax is also recognised in other compréremecome or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated onbthes of the tax laws enacted or substantively tedaat the

balance sheet date. Management periodically evadyatsitions taken in tax returns with respectitittaons in

which applicable tax regulation is subject to iptetation. It establishes provisions where appateron the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax auteriti
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Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(m) Deferred income tax(continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using tiebility method, on temporary differences arisingtween the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their aagrgmounts in the financial statements. Howevehe deferred
income tax arises from initial recognition of arsetsor liability in a transaction other than a lbesis combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neittwmounting nor taxable profit nor loss, it is aotounted for.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rades {aws) that have been enacted or substantiadigted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply Whadarnhporary differences will reverse.

The principal temporary differences arise from efiéint intangible asset amortization and properigntpand
equipment depreciation rates, revaluation of prigp@tant and equipment, as well as provisionssfow-moving
inventory, accrued expenses for unused annual laake bonuses, accruals for post-employment andr othe
employee benefits and provisions for bad and dauld#bts where the management is of the opiniontkiey will
meet the criteria stated in Article 9 of the lawn‘@orporate Income Tax”. Deferred income tax asset
recognized only to the extent that it is probaltiat tfuture taxable profit will be available againgbich the
temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities areedvfighen there is a legally enforceable right tsetffcurrent tax
assets against current tax liabilities and wherdéferred income taxes assets and liabilitiesedtmincome taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either tdpable entity or different taxable entities whéere is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Increase in deferred income tax liability that tessrom revaluation of property, plant and equipinis charged to
other comprehensive income as deduction from réiseincrease in the Revaluation reserve. Decrgadeferred
income tax liability that results from depreciatioh revalued property, plant and equipment is chdrtp the
income statement.

(n) Income tax
Income tax is assessed for the period in accordaftbelatvian tax legislation. The tax rate statgdLatvian tax
legislation is 15 percent.

(0) Accrued unused annual leave expenses

Amount of accrual for unused annual leave is detegchby multiplying the average daily wage of enygles for
the last six months of the reporting year by theoamh of accrued but unused annual leave at theoéritle
reporting year.

(p) Employee benefits

Bonus plans

The Company recognizes a liability and expensebforuses, based on formula that takes into considerthe
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholdditeracertain adjustments. The Company recognizpeogision
where contractually obliged or where there is d peactice that has created a constructive obbgati

Social security and pension contribution

The Company pays social security contributionshi® state Social Security Fund (the Fund) on betfaifs
employees based on the defined contribution plaacoordance with the local legal requirements. Thenpany
also makes contributions to an external definedrdmtion pension plan (the Plan). A defined cdnition plan is
a plan under which the Company pays fixed contidimgt into the Fund or the Plan and will have ncalegr
constructive obligations to pay further contribugaf the Fund or the Plan does not hold sufficesgets to pay
all employees benefits relating to employee seriridhe current and prior period. The social sagwand pension
contributions are recognised as an expense oncanadasis and are included within staff costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(p) Employee benefitg§continued)

Post-employment and other employee benefits

The Company provides defined benefits upon retirgnaand in the period of employment for employees seho
employment conditions meet defined criteria acaaydio the Employment contract. Amount of benefitbliity is
calculated based on current salary level and numbemployees, which are entitled or may becomeledtto receive
those payments, as well as based on actuarial assms\ calculation are performed using the Pregdinit Credit
method. The defined benefit obligation is calcudadémnually using the projected unit credit methblde present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determineddigcounting the estimated future cash outflows usliegmarket rates
on government bonds. Actuarial gains and losses s experience adjustments and changes in &dtaasumptions
are charge or credited to equity in other comprsiverincome in the period in which they arise.

(q) Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fairueahnd subsequently measured at amortised cosy tisn
effective interest method. Accounts payable arssifi@d as current liabilities if payment is dughin one year or
less. If not, they are presented as non-currelilitias.

() Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue when the amourtvehue can be reliably measured, it is probableftiare
economic benefits will flow to the entity and whsepecific criteria have been met for each of the gamy’s
activities as described below. The Company basessiimates on historical results, taking into @erstion the
type of customer, the type of transaction and peeifics of each arrangement.

Sales of natural gas

Sales are recognised upon delivery of gas, netabfevadded tax and discounts and the differenoseeest the
forecasted and actual purchase cost of naturaigash is used for determination of applicable natgas selling
price for the following month, but including excitex. Sales of natural gas to residential custoraeysecorded on
the basis of meter readings reported by custoriéngre relevant, this includes an estimate of thessazolume of
gas supplied between the date of the last metdingand the year-end. Natural gas sales to copatstomers
are recognized based on invoice issued accordingeter reading of customers.

Income of transmission and storage on natural gas

Income from rendering of services is recognisednuperformance of services, net of value added tak a
discounts. Income on natural gas transmission tordge is recognized based on actual amount o$rmdted and
stored gas, which are determined by meter readings.

Applicable natural gas selling price is calculabedged on latest available data. The exchangeaaE fR/USD set
by ECB in the last day of the previous month, dctmass calorific value of gas in the previous nfoas well as
planned volume of received and delivered gas aed usthe calculation. Actual purchase costs otirghtgas are
calculated based on methodology approved by the Wouncil, taking into account the exchange rdte o
EUR/USD at last day of the month when gas is dedideactual gas gross calorific value as well asawolume

of gas purchased from suppliers.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized using the effectiterest method. Interest income on term deposittassified as
Other income and interest on cash balances isifidalsas Finance income. Accrual of interest incameeased, if
its recoverability is uncertain.

Penalties income
Based on prudence principle penalties, includingdifor late payments for gas, are recognized wegived.

Income from contribution to financing of constractiworks

The income from residents and enterprises contabu financing of construction works of gas pipek is
accounted for as deferred income and recognizéteiincome statement over the expected periodeotdistomer
relationship of 30 to 40 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(n Revenue recognition(continued)

Other services
Sales of services are recognised in the accoupgnigd in which the services are rendered.

(s) Earnings per share
Earnings per share is determined by dividing thodifpor loss attributable to equity holders of tBempany by the
weighted average number of participating sharestanding during the reporting year.

() Related parties
Related parties are defined as the Company’s nsareholders that have a significant influence, bemof the
Council and the Board, their close relatives amganies in which they have a significant influence&ontrol.

(u) Grants

EC funding related to property, plant and equipmemecognized as deferred income and is credddte income
statement systematically over the expected liveahefelated assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land Buffer Buildings and Equipment Other  Advances Assets Total
gas gas and assets under
transmission  machinery construction
system
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Cost or revaluation
At December 31, 2011 1785 6 590 626 412 84593 5712 85 10732 742769
Additions - - - - 48 2573 15 629 18 250
Reclassified 31 - 13 356 9762 1913 (2 625) (22 437 -
Revaluation - - 88 758 (2 394) - - - 86 364
Disposals - - (5 548) (853) (369) 2) - (6772)
Rounding - - - - - 1 - 1
At December 31, 2012 1816 6 590 722 978 91108 164 32 3924 840612
Depreciation
At December 31, 2011 - - 372419 47 494 7726 - - 27439
Charged for 2012 - - 17 059 (3 096) 1300 - - 15 263
Disposals - - (3551) (785) (351) - - (4 687)
At December 31, 2012 - - 385 927 43 613 8 675 - - 38215
Net book value at
December 31, 2012 1816 6 590 337 051 47 495 5489 32 3924 402 397
Net book value at
December 31, 2011 1785 6 590 253 993 37099 4846 85 10732 315130

During 2012 the management has identified assetshwhad no carrying value, proper correction of bo@lues and
depreciation are made in the financial statements.

Land Buffer Buildings and Equipment Other Advances Assets Total
gas gas and assets under
transmission  machinery construction
system
LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000
Cost or revaluation
At December 31, 2012 1816 6 590 722 978 91108 164 32 3924 840612
Additions - - - - - 2120 17 025 19 145
Reclassified - - 13 404 2539 1012 (1872) (15 083) -
Revaluation - - 335 37 - - - 372
Disposals - - (4 306) (1 228) (580) - (15) (6 129)
At December 31, 2013 1816 6 590 732 411 92 456 594 280 5851 854 000
Depreciation
At December 31, 2012 - - 385 927 43 613 8 675 - - 38215
Charged for 2013 - - 16 178 4849 1403 - - 22 430
Disposals - - (2 797) (1 139) (572) - - (4 508)
At December 31, 2013 - - 399 308 47 323 9 506 - - 456 137
Net book value at
December 31, 2013 1816 6 590 333103 45 133 5090 280 5851 397 863
Net book value at
December 31, 2012 1816 6 590 337 051 47 495 5489 32 3924 402 397

During the reporting year the management has ifiethtassets which had no carrying value, properection of book values
and depreciation are made in the financial statésnen
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Cost or revaluation

At December 31, 2011
Additions

Reclassified
Revaluation

Disposals

At December 31, 2012

Depreciation

At December 31, 2011
Charged for 2012
Disposals

At December 31, 2012

Net book value at
December 31, 2012

Net book value at
December 31, 2011

Cost or revaluation

At December 31, 2012
Additions

Reclassified
Revaluation

Disposals

At December 31, 2013

Depreciation

At December 31, 2012
Charged for 2013
Disposals

At December 31, 2013

Net book value at
December 31, 2013
Net book value at
December 31, 2012

Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Land Buffer Buildings  Equipment Other Advances Assets Total
gas and gas and assets under
transmission  machinery construction
system
EUR'000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR’000 EUR'000 EUR’000
2540 9377 891 304 120366 890 120 15272 1056 869
- - - - 68 3662 22 238 25968
44 - 19 004 13 890 2722 (3735) (H) 92 -
- - 126 291 (3 406) - - - 122 885
- - (7 894) (1213) (525) [©)] - (9635)
2584 9377 1028 705 129 63720 155 44 5585 1196 087
- - 529 905 67 580 10994 - - 608 479
- - 24 273 (4 405) 1850 - 21718
- - (5 053) (1117) (499) - - (6 669)
- - 549 125 62 058 12 345 - - 623528
2584 9377 479 580 67 579 7810 44 5585 572 559
2540 9377 361 399 52 786 6896 120 15272 448 390
Land Buffer Buildings Equipment Other Advances Assets Total
gas and gas and assets under
transmissio  machinery construction
n system
EUR'000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR’000 EUR'000 EUR’000
2584 9377 1028705 129 637 20 155 44 5585 1196 087
- - - - - 3016 24 224 27 240
- - 19 072 3613 1440 (2664) (21 461) -
- - 476 53 - - - 529
- - (6 127) (1 747) (825) - (22) (8 720)
2584 9377 1042126 131556 20770 396 8327 1215136
- - 549 125 62 058 12 345 - - 623 528
- - 23019 6 900 1996 - - 31915
- - (3 980) (1 621) (814) - - (6 415)
- - 568 164 67 337 13527 - - 649 028
2584 9 377 473 962 64 219 7243 396 8327 566 108
2584 9377 479 580 67 579 7 810 44 5585 572559
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

During 2003 and004 buildings, gas transmission and distribution systand equipment were revalued using cost
(amortised replacement cost) method. The amortiepthcement cost was determined by a certifiedgaddent
assessor JSC BDO “Invest Riga”. During 2012 the gamy performed subsequent revaluation of all ags®ips
mentioned above using amortised replacement cogitotie The amortised replacement cost was deterntiyed
independent certified valuator JSC BDO.

Fixed assets include fully depreciated assets withtal cost of LVL 7 702 thousand or EUR 10 9B8usand
(31.12.2012: LVL 4 906 thousand or EUR 6 981 tlamal.

As at December 31, 2013 the carrying amount in theerevaluated property, plant and equipment wdngdd
carried under the cost model is LVL 173 451 thodsanEUR 246 799 thousand including buildings LV251
454 thousand (EUR 192 734 thousand) and equipmedhtnaachinery LVL 37 997 thousand (EUR 54 065
thousand) (31.12.2012: LVL 165 914 thousand or ERBS 074 thousand including buildings LVL 126
950 thousand (EUR 180 633 thousand) and equipmedtnaachinery LVL 38 964 thousand (EUR 55 441
thousand)).

During the reporting year the Company has capédlidepreciation in amount of LVL 11 thousand or EUR
thousand (2012: LVL 13 thousand or EUR 18 thousand)

According to local legislation the Company disckbsecadastral value of the land plots and buildibgtermination

of a precise cadastral value of the land plotstanftlings owned by the Company is in process. Assdsadastral
value on December 31, 2013 of the buildings is L8/B24 thousand or EUR 9 710 thousand (2012: L\476
thousand or EUR 9 064 thousand ), cadastral vatueexember 31, 2013 of the land plots is LVL 2 Stbusand

or EUR 3 587 thousand (31.12.2012: LVL 3158 tlamas or EUR 4 493 thousand), LVL 38 thousand
(EUR 54 thousand) for container equipment (31.1222QVL 31 thousand (EUR 45 thousand)).

Engineering buildings (distribution pipelines, tings un reservoirs) cadastral value on Decembef813 is LVL
41 594 thousand or EUR 59 183 thousand (31.12.201R41 682 thousand or EUR 59 308 thousand)).

Cadastral value is not determined for 1 buildind for 117 drillings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

LVL’'000 EUR’000
Cost
As at December 31, 2011 7 296 10 381
Additions 894 1272
Disposals (33) (47)
As at December 31, 2012 8 157 11 606
Amortisation
As at December 31, 2011 5220 7427
Charge for the year 851 1211
On disposals (33) (47)
As at December 31, 2012 6 038 8591
Net Book Value as at December 31, 2012 2119 3015
Net Book Value as at December 31, 2011 2076 2 954
LVL’'000 EUR’000
Cost
As at December 31, 2012 8 157 11 606
Additions 751 1068
Disposals (42) (58)
As at December 31, 2013 8 867 12 616
Amortisation
As at December 31, 2012 6 038 8591
Charge for the year 909 1293
On disposals (42) (58)
As at December 31, 2013 6 906 9 826
Net Book Value as at December 31, 2013 1961 2790
Net Book Value as at December 31, 2012 2119 3015

Intangible assets include fully amortised intangillssets with a total cost value of LVL 2 875 tlamas or
EUR 4 091 thousand (31.12.2012: LVL 2 198 thousandUR 3 127 thousand).

The major intangible assets are a geographic-irdowa system (GIS) of Inchukalns {kalns) 3D data base, an
Individual customer billing system PUNS-2 and dlsition GIS at a carrying amount of LVL 168 thoudan
(EUR 239 thousand) and LVL 140 thousand (EUR 1@@ishnd) and LVL 133 thousand (EUR 189 thousand)
respectively as at December 31, 2013 (31.12.20¥2:202 thousand (EUR 287 thousand) and LVL 204 Haoal
(EUR 290 thousand) and LVL 176 thousand (EUR 2B0isand)).

31



Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 TRADE RECEIVABLES
31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Non-current trade receivables

Gross value 5 7 949 7 11 310
Other receivables 4 4 6 6
Provisions for impairment of receivables (3) (5840 (4) (8 309)
6 2113 9 3007

Current trade receivables
Gross value 35 048 62 477 49 869 88 897
Provisions for impairment of receivables (7 314) 203) (10 407) (7 433)

27 734 57 253 39 462 81 464
Total trade receivables 27 740 59 366 39471 84 471

Provisions for impairment of bad and doubtful debts

2013 2012 2013 2012
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Provisions at the beginning of the year 11 151 992 15 865 14 116
Charged to income statement 3400 1705 4 838 2 426
Released to income statement (1 125) (441) (1 601) (627)
Net charge to income statement (see Note 15) 2275 1264 3237 1799
Written off (6 036) (35) (8 588) (50)
Provisions at the year end 7 390 11 151 10514 ¥58

Provisions as at December 31, 2013 of LVL 7 387sland (EUR 10 510 thousand) relate to to currextetr
receivables, whereas as at 31 December 2012 theyrded to 5 310 thousand (EUR 7 555 thousand).ifloms
as at December 31, 2013 of LVL 76 thousand (EUR th@8sand) relate to other trade receivables (20V2:
5 840 thousand (EUR 8 310 thousand) (see Noter@yidfons were created based on evaluation ofitten€ial
position and operations of separate groups of ou=te. The actual losses may differ from the curcaittulations,
as the specific amounts required are regularlyereed and changes are reflected in the income statem
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6 INVENTORIES

31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Materials and spare parts

(at net realisable value) 5081 3217 7 230 4 577
Gas and fuel (at cost) 125 055 90 059 177 937 128 1
130 136 93 276 185 167 132719

The cost of inventories recognized as expenserahdded in “Cost of sales” amounted to LVL 306 3t8usand
or EUR 435 844 thousand (2012: LVL 329 726 thousandUR 469 158 thousand).

Provisions for impairment of obsolete and slow mgvinventories:
2013 2012 2013 2012

LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Provisions at the beginning of the year 404 615 575 874
Charged to income statement 7 34 10 48
Released to income statement (81) (242) (115) (344)
Written off (6) (3) (9) (4)
Provisions at the year end 324 404 461 574

Provisions have been created for slow moving neterand spare parts. During 2013 the Company used i
operations inventories amounting to LVL 64 thousan&UR 91 thousand (2012: LVL 162 thousand or EX3R
thousand) that had been written off in previougyea

7 OTHER RECEIVABLES

31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Term deposits 27 339 - 38 900 -
Prepayments and deferred expense 268 375 381 534
Interest accrued on bank deposits 8 1 11 1
Receivable for services supplied 12 14 17 21
Prepayment for natural gas - 665 - 946
Other debtors 170 348 241 495

27 797 1403 39 550 1997
Provisions for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts* (72) (86) (102) (122)

27 725 1317 39 448 1875

*Provisions for impairment of bad and doubtful detelate principally to Other debtors.
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8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Cash on hand - 1 - 2

Current accounts with banks 18 599 12 364 26 464 597

Term deposits* 4983 10 219 7 090 14 540
23 582 22 584 33 554 32134

* As at December 31, 2013 deposits with initial anay term over 90 days were LVL 27 339 thousandRE38
900 thousand). As at December 31, 2012 there weedeposits with initial maturity term over 90 daysey are
shown in Note 7, position “Term deposits”. Term dgifs fixed interest rate during 2013 is from 0.0&22.0%
per annum (2012: from 0.1% to 3.3% per annum).

9 SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Authorised, subscribed and paid-up share capitalt &ecember 31, 2013 consists of 39 900 000 arglina
shares of LVL 1 each. All shares have equal vatiglyts and rights to dividend.

31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
% from total Number of % from total Number of
share capital shares  share capital shares
Registered (closed issues) shares 36,52 14 571 480 36,52 14 571 480
Bearer (public issues) shares 63,48 25 328 520 63,48 25328520
100,00 39 900 000 100,00 39 900 000
(b) Shareholders
31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
% from Number of % from Number of
total share shares total share shares
capital capital
E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH
(including registered shares of closed
issues 7 285 740) 47,23 18 846 385 47,23 18 846 385
Itera Latvija LLC 16,00 6 384 001 16,00 6 384 001
JSC Gazprom
(including registered shares of closed
issues 7 285 740) 34,00 13566 701 34,00 13566 701
Shares owned by the State 0,00 117 0,00 117
Bearer (public issues) shares 2,77 1102 796 2,77 1021796
100,00 39 900 000 100,00 39 900 000

State owned shares are given for holding to thed#inof Economicof the Republic of Latvia.
10 BORROWINGS

During 2013 or 2012 the Company did not have boimgs:
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11 DEFERRED INCOME

(a) Income from residents and enterprises contdghub financing of construction works of gas pipes:

Non-current portion
Current portion

Deferred income movement:

At the beginning of the year
Received from residents and
enterprises during the reporting year
Written down to income statement in
the reporting year (see Note 16)

Deferred to the following periods

Deferred income movement:

At the beginning of the year
Written down to income statement in
the reporting year

Deferred to the following periods

(b) EC funding recognised

Non-current portion
Current portion

Deferred income movement:

At the beginning of the year
Recognised deferred income from
EC grants in the reporting year
Written down to income statement in
the reporting year

Deferred to the following periods

Total deferred to the following
periods

31.12.2013.  31.12.2012.  31.12.2013.  31.12.2012.
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR'000 EUR'000
13 792 13 752 19 624 19 568
628 606 893 862
14 420 14 358 20517 20 430
2013 2012 2013 2012
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR'000 EUR'000
14 358 14 340 20 430 0 4@4
677 610 963 69 8
(615) (592) (876) (843)
14 420 14 358 BL7 20 430
2013 2012 2013 2012
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR'000 EUR'000
- 4 669 - 6 644
- (4 669) - (6 644)
6 423 6 611 9139 9 406
188 188 268 268
6 611 6 799 9 407 9 674
2013 2012 2013 2012
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR'000 EUR'000
6 799 6 770 9674 9 632
21 226 30 322
(209) (197) (297) (280)
6 611 6 799 9 407 9674
21031 21157 29 924 30 104
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11 DEFERRED INCOME (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the European Commission resolltio.C(2011) 5554 dated August 13, 2008 on thecdoh
a financial grant under the EC Regulation (EC) 88/2009 on gas and electricity interconnections,Gompany
has received funding of 50%, but not more than L¥Imillion (EUR 10 million) for realization of Actius
No.EEPR-2010-INTg-RF-LV-LT-12.566527 “Modernizatiaf 15 wells at the Kukalns UGS” and S12.566531
“Construction of a gas passage below the River Baaigind a pig receiver”. The objects were put ageration
in 2011. The unused portion of funds is grantedréaonstruction of two other wells. The final paymn&om EC
was received in 2013.

See also Accounting policies Note (u).

12 OTHER PAYABLES
31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.

LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR'000 EUR’000

Prepayments received 7 690 6 404 10943 9112
Social insurance contributions 547 797 778 1134
Personal income tax 345 499 491 710
Value added tax 7111 12 381 10 118 17 617
Excise tax 1511 2375 2150 3379
Salaries 607 527 864 750
Accrued expenses for unused annual
leave 841 934 1197 1329
Accrued expenses for bonuses 4 860 4190 6 915 2596
Accrued other expenses 315 335 448 476
Accrued post-employment benefit
liabilities and other obligations to
employees * 260 233 370 331
Other current liabilities 2 653 141 3775 201

26 740 28 816 38 049 41001

* Accrued post-employment benefit liabilities andestbbligations to employees in Note 22.
13 REVENUE
Sales per customers’ groups are as follows:

2013 2017 2013 2012
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Income from natural gas sales to industrial custsme 345 106 363 27( 491 04: 516 88t
Income from natural gas sales to residential custem 44 176 46 84 62 85 66 64¢
Income from transmission and storage of natural gas 13 396 16 54¢ 19 06! 23 54¢
Other services 706 754 1 00< 1 07:
403 384 427 41. 573 963 608 154

If sales of natural gas based on leveraged payfnesidential customers) increased or decreased¥pytiren
income from natural gas sales to residential custerwould increase or decrease by 5%. Income feordaring

of services is recognised upon performance of sesyinet of value added tax and discounts, butidivog excise
tax in amount of LVL 15 236 thousand or EUR 21 @fi6usand in 2013 (2012: LVL 14 895 thousand or
EUR 21 193 thousand).
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14 COST OF SALES

2013 2012 2013 2012
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Purchase of natural gas 314 634 335949 447 684 0178
Salaries 11716 12 102 16 670 17 220
Social insurance contributions 2783 2 865 3960 074
Life, health and pension insurance 798 852 1135 2121
Materials and spare parts 7 385 9013 10 508 12 824
Depreciation and amortisation 22 617 28 425 32181 40445
Other expenses 5 558 5487 7908 7 807

365 491 394 693 520 046 561 597

15 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries 3619 3393 5149 4 828
Social insurance contributions 790 765 1124 1088
Life, health and pension insurance 145 153 206 218
Maintenance and utilities 671 744 955 1059
Real estate tax 763 769 1 086 1094
Depreciation and amortisation 576 573 820 815
Bank charges 86 88 122 125
Provisions for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts, net (see Note 5) 2275 1264 2373 1799
Other expenses 3739 1335 5 320 1900
12 664 9 084 18 019 12 926

16 OTHER INCOME

Penalties from customers 993 953 1413 1 356

Income from contribution to financing of

construction works (see Note 11) 615 592 876 843

Income from change in provisions of slow

moving and obsolete inventories 74 208 105 296

Other income 693 1207 986 1718

Net foreign exchange gains 666 2093 948 2978

Interest income 138 330 196 469
3179 5383 4 524 7 660

17 OTHER EXPENSES

Materials 27 28 39 40
Salaries 197 215 280 306
Social insurance contributions 25 28 36 40
Depreciation and amortisation 73 138 104 196
Sponsorship 2104 2183 2994 3 106
Loss from sale of fixed assets* 1190 1683 1693 392
Other expenses 320 296 455 421
3936 4571 5601 6 504
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18 EXPENSES BY NATURE

2013 2012 2013 2012
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Purchase of natural gas 314 634 335949 447 684 0178
Depreciation and amortisation 23 266 29 136 33105 41456
Employee benefit expenses (see Note 26) 20 073 720 3 28 560 28 989
Material and spare parts 7412 9041 10 547 12 864
Net provisions for impaired receivables 2275 1264 3237 1799
Other expenses 14 431 12 585 20 533 17 907

382 091 408 348 543 666 581 027

19 FINANCE INCOME

Finance income
- Interest income 109 286 155 407

20 NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN AND INTEREST INCOME

The exchange net differences are credited to thenie statement under Other income and Other expéase
Notes 16 and 17).

Interest income credited to the income statement iscluded as follows:

Other income (see Note 16) 138 330 196 469
Finance income (see Note 19) 109 286 155 407
247 616 351 876

21 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current income tax 4 157 4 256 5915 6 055
Deferred income tax (278) (723) (396) (1 028)
3879 3533 5519 5027

Corporate income tax differs from the theoreticaifyculated tax amount that would arise applyireg16% rate
stipulated by the law to profit before taxation:

Profit before income tax 24 581 24 734 34 976 3941
Theoretically calculated tax at tax rate of 15% 387 3710 5246 5279
Tax effect of:

Tax non-deductible expenses, net 1127 826 1603 1751
Tax relief on donations (935) (1 003) (1 330) (Trpn2
Tax charge 3879 3533 5519 5027

Deferred income tax is calculated by using the tathtax rate — 15%.
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Reconciliation between actual corporate incomecteatge and the amount of corporate income tax payab

Receivable as at 1 January (1734 (2 432) (2 467) (3 460)
Charge for the year 4156 4 255 5913 6 054
Paid during the year (3 608) (3557) (5134) (5)061
Receivableas at 31 December (1186) (1734) (1 688) (2 467)

Calculation of deferred income tax:
31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR'000 EUR'000
Deferred income tax liabilities at the beginning
of the reporting year 40 237 26 444 57 252 37 626
Increase in deferred income tax liabilities that
results from revaluation of property, plant and
equipment (charged to other comprehensive

income) 47 14 823 67 21 091
Decrease in deferred income tax liabilities
(credited to income statement) (278) (723) (396) 048)

Deferred income tax that results from disposal of
revalued property, plant and equipment

(credited to equity) (334) (307) (476) (437)
Deferred income tax liabilities at the end of the
reporting year 39672 40 237 56 447 57 252

31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR'000 EUR'000

Deferred tax liabilities:

— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered
after more than 12 months 39672 40 237 56 447 527 2

— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered
within 12 months - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities, net 39672 40 237 56 447 57 252
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21 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are atifoutable to the following items:

31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.

LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR'000 EUR'000
Difference on depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (to be settled within 12 months) 1498 381 2131 1965
Difference on depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (to be settled after more than 12
months) 40 772 41931 58 013 59 662
Impairment of bad and doubtful debts
(to be settled within 12 months) * (883) (1516) 286) (2 157)
Accrued expenses for unused annual leave and
bonuses (to be settled within 12 months) (860) (761) (1 224) (1 082)
Accruals for post-employment benefits and other
employee benefits (to be settled after more than
12 month) (613) (687) (872) (978)
Accruals for other liabilities (to be settled withi
12 months) (194) (50) (276) (72)
Impairment of inventories
(to be settled within 12 months) (48) (61) (69) )87
Deferred income tax liability, net 39672 40 237 56 447 57 252

* These are provisions for impairment of bad anddful debts that are expected to become allowéinle
corporate income tax purposes in the foreseeahleefas relevant debtor companies are in liquidatio

22

At the beginning of reporting year

Current service (cost) / income

Interest expense

Post-employment benefits paid
Remeasurements of post employment benefit
obligations

ACCRUALS FOR EMPLOYMENT AND POST EMPLOYMENT BENE FITS

Provisions at the end of the reporting year

Non-current portion of provisions
Current portion of provisions (see Note 12)

Provisions at the end of the reporting year

4581 4274 6518 6 082
(265) 185 (377) 263
371 309 52¢ 439
(143) (106) (203) (151)
(459) (81) (654) (115)
4085 4581 5812 6518
3825 4348 5 442 6 187
260 233 370 331
4085 4581 5812 6518

Post-employment benefits are unique or monthhyiited time period) benefits, which are paid toeanployee,
whose employment conditions meet defined critecizoeding to the Employment contract. Accruals fendéfits
are calculated based on the current level of thaisa and the number of those employees, who nlighentitied
to such benefits, if they terminated employmentwiite Company, as well as previously applied bénaties and

actuarial assumptions.
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22  ACCRUALS FOR EMPLOYMENT AND POST EMPLOYMENT BENE FITS (CONTINUED)

For calculation of provisions following assumptidrese been used:

2013 2012
Discount rate (considering profitability of goverant bonds at the
balance sheet date), % 2.1265 3.2515
Employee rotation ratio 3.10 3.21
Pension age of employees, years 62 62
Mortality, years ok *rx
Change in payroll, %:
2012 - 4.00
2013 4.00 4.00
2014 4.00 4.00
2015 4.00 4.00
2016 4.00 4.00
2017 4.00 4.00
2018 4.00 -
Contributions in private pension funds, % of totabss income of
employees 5.00 5.00
SSC* 23.55% 23.63%
PIT** 24% 25%

* average rate according to the Cabinet of Minsstetes in force during 2013 and 2012
** average rate according to the Cabinet of Ministeiles in force during 2013 and 2012.
*** gccording to provision calculation methodology.

Sensitivity of total employment and post-employmaifdwance depending on the assumption changes:

Change in assumptions Impact on the total liabilites
Discount rate Increase/decrease of 0.5% Decredzd@¥o / increase of 4.57%
Employee rotation ratio Increase/decrease of 0.5 crézse of 2.48% / increase of 2.20%
Pension age Increase/decrease of 1 year Decreds®866 / increase of 3.52%
Life period Increase/decrease of 1 year Increa$e9®% / decrease of 0.97%
Payroll growth ratio Increase/decrease of 0.5% relase of 3.51% / decrease of 3.43%
Contribution to the private
pension funds Increase/decrease of 0.5% Increa388%0 / decrease of 0.33%
SSC Increase/decrease of 0.5% Increase of 0.3&réake of 0.33%
PIT Increase/decrease of 0.5% Increase of 0.0186redse of 0.01%

23  EARNINGS AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE
(a) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shand therefore diluted earnings per share areaime as
the basic earnings per share.

Basic earnings per share are calculated by divithegnet profit attributable to the shareholdershzyweighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue duniegear.
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(a) EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

2013 2012 2013 2012
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Net profit attributable to shareholders (a) 20702 21201 29 457 30 167
number, th. number, th. number, th. number, th.
Ordinary shares as at 1 January 39 900 39 900 3990 39900
Ordinary shares as at 31 December 39 900 39 900 9039 39 900
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year (b) 39 900 39 900 3D 90 39 900
Basic earnings per share during the year
(a/b) in LVL or EUR 0,519 0,531 0,738 0,756

(b) DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

Dividends payable are not accounted for until taey declared at the Annual General Meeting. Atntleeting in
2014, a dividend in respect to 2013 of LVL 0.508JHE0.72) per share will be proposed by the managéeme
These financial statements do not reflect thesileinds payable, which will be accounted for in shareholders’
equity as an appropriation of retained earning61r3.

The dividends paid in 2013 for 2012 were LVL 19 9B6usand (LVL 0.50 per share) or EUR 28 386 thodsa
(EUR 0.711 per share). The dividends paid in 2@2011 were LVL 23 940 thousand (LVL 0.60 per shar
EUR 34 064 thousand (EUR 0.85 per share).

24  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash genedafrom operations:

2013 2012 2013 2012
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR'000 EUR'000

Profit before income tax 24 581 24734 34 976 3519
Adjustments for:

Depreciation (Note 3) 22 430 15 263 31915 21718
Amortisation (Note 4) 909 851 1293 1211

Deviations of actual and predictable purchases
of natural gas and income from participation

fees (see Note 11) (824) (5 458) (1173) (7 767)
Provision for impairment of slow moving

inventories (Note 6) (74) (208) (105) (296)
Change in accrued expenses for bonuses 670 (714) 953 (1 016)
Change in accrued expenses for unused annual

leave (93) 41 (132) 58
Change in accruals for other liabilities 2 527 (80) 3596 (114)

Change in accrued expenses for post-
employment benefits and other employee

benefits (Note 22) (496) 307 (706) 436

Interest income (Note 20) (247) (616) (351) (876)

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

(Note 17) 1190 1683 1693 2 395

Changes in working capital

- trade and other receivables 31893 (26 685) 45 380 (37 969)

- inventories (36 860) (54 685) (52 447) (77 810)

- trade and other payables 23 639 78 410 33635 111 567
69 245 32 843 98 527 46 731
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

No entity exercises a control over the Companyitiestdisclosed below own or owned more than 20%hef
shares that deemed to provide a significant infteesver the Company.

(@) Sale of transmission services
2013 2012 2013 2012
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

JSC “Gazprom” 12 343 15503 17 563 22 058

(b)  Purchase of natural gas

JSC “Gazprom” 224 100 248 339 318 866 353 354

The entity has long-term agreement with JSC Gazgrased on “take or pay” rules that determine theimum
guantity which should be purchased for respectmgop. If the entity is not able to consume theeagdrvolume,
legal obligations might arise.

(c)  Accounts payable for natural gas and services

31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

JSC “Gazprom” 411 1 585 1

Companies controlled by JSC Gazprom - 426 - 606

E.ON Ruhrgas AG 9 13 12 18
420 440 597 625

Payables are payable in cash and are not securzgliegge or otherwise.

(d)  Accounts receivable for natural gas in transit

JSC “Gazprom” 1029 2434 1464 3 463

Receivables are receivable in cash and are notesbby a pledge or otherwise.
(e) Advance payment for natural gas to relatecompany

JSC “Gazprom” for natural gas - 665 - 946

Advance payments for natural gas injected intditiekalns UGS for the needs of Latvia.

()] Expenses for services from companies coaolied by related party

2013 2012 2013 2012
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000
E.ON Ruhrgas AG 14 13 20 18
Companies controlled by JSC “Gazprom” 3293 4937 4 686 7 025
3 307 4 950 4706 7 043
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() Remuneration to Board of Directors and Council

A list of the members of the Board of Directors &wlincil is shown on page 3.

2013 2012 2013 2012
LVL’'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Salaries 1658 1432 2 359 2038
Social insurance contributions 257 299 366 425
Change in accruals for post-employment
benefits and other employee benefits (20) - ) (28 -
Health and life insurance 3 3 4 4
Contributions to pension funds 50 46 71 65

1948 1780 2772 2532

Salaries and social insurance contributions incem®ued bonuses for the reporting year.

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Wages and salaries 15 370 14 975 21 868 21 308
Post-employment benefits and other employee

benefits 162 735 231 1 046
Social insurance contributions 3 566 3522 5074 0156

Social insurance contributions related to post-
employment benefits and other employee

benefits 32 136 46 194
Life, health and pension insurance 943 1 005 1341 1430
20 073 20 373 28 560 28 989

In accordance with the Rules of the Cabinet of Btais of Latvia 75.80% (2012: 76.20%) of the soicialirance
contributions are used to fund the state definedridzution pension system.
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31.12.2013.

Gas Gas Gas Gas Other
transmissior storage  distribution  realization services TOTAL

LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000

Segment revenue from

external customers 3382 9981 - 389 315 706 4d@3 38
Inter-segment revenue 16 458 11 326 35674 270 152 63 880
Inter-segment costs (42) (197) (524) (63 117) - §80)
Interest income - - - - 109 109
Profit before tax 3280 5477 9629 6 307 (112) 584
Corporate income tax 391 742 1442 1060 244 3879
Assets 140 481 101 004 180 252 181 745 6711 630 19
Liabilities 18 413 14 576 40 452 108 672 269 182 38
Other information on
segment
Depreciation and
amortisation 9531 5140 7 976 513 106 23 266
Additions of non-
current assets 8 814 4 879 5848 263 2 19 806
31.12.2013.

Gas Gas Gas Gas Other

transmissior  storage  distribution  realization services TOTAL
EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000  EUR'000
Segment revenue from

external customers 4812 14 202 - 553 945 1004 573 963
Inter-segment revenue 23418 16 115 50 760 384 216 90 893
Inter-segment costs (60) (280) (746) (89 807) - g§98)
Interest income - - - - 155 155
Profit before tax 4 667 7 793 13701 8 974 (159) 93@
Corporate income tax 556 1 056 2 052 1508 347 % 51
Assets 199 886 143 716 256 476 258 599 9 549 868 22
Liabilities 26 199 20 740 57 558 154 626 382 255 50
Other information on

segment

Depreciation and

amortisation 13 561 7 314 11 349 730 151 33105
Additions of non-

current assets 12 542 6 942 8 321 374 2 28 181
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31.12.2012.

Gas Gas Gas Gas Other
transmission  storage distribution  realization services TOTAL

LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000 LVL'000

Segment revenue from

external customers 3987 12 525 - 410 147 754 437 4
Inter-segment revenue 16 694 11 470 36 699 334 103 65 300
Inter-segment costs (28) (2112) (661) (64 400) - 366)
Interest income - - - - 286 286
Profit before tax 5990 6 989 7 808 2421 1526 724
Corporate income tax 777 1057 1341 793 (435) 3B 53
Assets 142 426 100 975 180 552 152 278 6 562 582 79
Liabilities 19 729 14 783 41 283 80 779 (576) 1989
Other information on
segment
Depreciation and
amortisation 10912 5 892 11 751 406 175 29 136
Additions of non-
current assets 5374 5851 6 965 995 3 19 188
31.12.2012.
Gas Gas Gas Gas Other
transmission  storage distribution  realization services TOTAL

EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000 EUR'000
Segment revenue from

external customers 5673 17 822 - 583 587 1073 608 155
Inter-segment revenue 23754 16 320 52 218 475 147 92 914
Inter-segment costs (40) (300) (941) (91 633) - (92 914)
Interest income - - - - 407 407
Profit before tax 8523 9944 11 110 3445 2172 35194
Corporate income tax 1106 1504 1908 1128 (619) 5027
Assets 202 654 143 674 256 902 216 673 9 337 829 240
Liabilities 28 072 21 035 58 740 114 938 (820) 221 965
Other information on

segment

Depreciation and

amortisation 15 526 8 384 16 719 578 249 41 456
Additions of non-

current assets 7 647 8 325 9910 1416 4 27 302
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The largest customers:

Five of the Company’s customers comprise up to %7(lh 2012— 44.7%) of income. Income generated by the
largest customer as of December 31, 2013 was 3%i492012 — 29.0%), the second and the third largest
customers constituted 6.5% and 2.8% respectivalR@il2 — 8.0% and 3.1%) of the total income amothis
income is related to the natural gas realizatiamsmnt.

No geographical segment information is providedlbprincipal operations are carried out in Latvia.

28 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the financial statements in eonity with IFRS requires the use of certain catiaccounting
estimates. It also requires management to exeitispidgement in the process of applying the Comgjsgan
accounting policies.

IFRS requires that in preparing the financial stemts, management of the Company make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts adtesnd liabilities and required disclosure at diage of the
financial statements and the reported amountsvefimges and expenses during the reporting perioalaAcesults
could differ from those estimates. The areas inngha higher degree of judgement and thus haviggifsgant

risk of casing a material adjustments to the cagydmounts of assets and liabilities within thetrigancial year

are revaluation of property, plant and equipmestenination of frequency of revaluations, the ngemaent
assumptions and estimates in determination of lseés of property, plant and equipment, recovéamount

of accounts receivable and inventories, post-emmpéoyt benefits and other employee benefits as destrin
respective notes.

Revaluation of fixed assets

The management determines fair value and the rémgairseful life of buildings, gas transmission alistribution
system and equipment based on valuations perfobpdéddependent certified valuators in accordanci weal
estate valuation standards and based on the avemgsruction costs relevant for the reporting yéene
Company’s internal policy is to perform the revdioas when there are indications that average oact#n costs
and/or purchase prices related to the buildings, tgansmission and distribution system and equiprhene
changed significantly once per 5 years at least1@iebruary 2012 the Company performed revaluatiothe
buildings, gas transmission and distribution systm equipment that increased the carrying amotinthese
assets by LVL 85.04 million (EUR 121 million). Themortised replacement cost was determined by an
independent certified valuator JSC BDO.

Recoverable amount of trade receivables

The estimated collectability of accounts receivablassessed on an individual basis for each c@stdm case
individual assessment is not possible due to ttgelaumber of individual balances, only the siguwifit debtors
are assessed individually. Receivables that aréndotidually assessed for impairment are clasgifigo groups
of receivables with similar credit risk characticis and are collectively assessed for impairmasitig historical
loss experience. Historical loss experience issadflion the basis of current observable data tectehe effects
of current conditions that did not affect the pdrin which the historical loss experience is bamadl to remove
the effects of conditions in the historical pertbdt do not exist currently. Refer to Note 5.

Inventory valuation

Upon valuation of inventories, the management setie its best knowledge taking into consideratistonical
experience, general background information and mfiste assumptions and conditions of future evers.
determining the impairment of inventories, the sgletential as well as the net realisable valueneéntory is
taken into consideration. Refer to Note 6.

Evaluation of post-employment and other employeefiis

Liabilities for the employee benefits are preseritethe balance sheet at their present value. Eyapldenefit
liabilities are calculated for each year using Fliejected Unit Credit method. Both actuaries definad publicly
available assumptions are used in calculationsrdétgachanges in demographic and financial varghiRefer to
Note 22.
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Recognition of revenues using the leveraged consompayment scheme

Customers, who settle payments using the leveragmusumption payment scheme, when paying bills
(commercial users and private persons, who perforraperating activity), perform the readings of engtwice a
year and determine the leveraged consumption ®miimter season (November to April) and summer aeas
Customers are invoiced on the monthly basis.

Customers who are residents (household customett#¢ siccounts using the leveraged consumption paym
scheme in the self-service order. Customers pertbmreadings of meters (depending on consumptiong a
year or when tariffs are changed. All customerthefhouseholds are invoiced on a monthly basisubyngsing the
leveraged consumption for which a seasonal raappsied.

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
29.1. Financial risk factors

The Company’s overall risk management program getdaon “JSC “Latvijas &ze” risk management guidelines
and procedures” developed by SIA Marsh in 200%esas “The Rules of “JSC “Latvijasae” on management
of financial resources” (hereafter — Rules) devetbm 2012.

The Company’s overall risk management program fesas the unpredictability of financial markets aeeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Compafipancial performance. An approach of assessméthe
financial stability of Latvian commerciddanks and foreign credit institutionddranches by evaluating various
criteria (both quantitative and qualitative) wittetadded assessment scales is described in the Rule

Financial instruments owned by the Company (acoorth IFRS 7):

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
LVL'000 LVL'000
Financial Financial
Loans and liabilities at Loans and liabilities at

Financial assets receivables amortized cost receivables amortized cost
Receivables from related
companies 1029 - 2434 -
Trade receivables 26 706 - 54 819 -
Other receivables 27 725 - 1317 -
Cash and cash equivalents 23 582 - 22 584 -
Total financial assets: 79 042 - 81 154 -
Financial liabilities
Payables to related companies - 420 - 734
Trade payables - 90 694 - 60 706
Other payables - 26 740 - 28 816
Total financial liabilities: - 117 854 - 90 256

48



Translation from Latvian Original
JOINT STOCK COMPANY “LATVIJAS G AZE"
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
29  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

29.1. Financial risk factors(continued)

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
EUR’000 EUR’000
Financial Financial
Loans and liabilities at Loans and liabilities at

Financial assets receivables amortized cost receivables amortized cost
Receivables from related
companies 1464 - 3463 -
Trade receivables 37 998 - 78 001 -
Other receivables 39 448 - 1875 -
Cash and cash equivalents 33 554 - 32134 -
Total financial assets: 112 464 - 115 473 -
Financial liabilities
Payables to related companies - 597 - 1043
Trade payables - 129 046 - 86 378
Other payables - 38 049 - 41 001
Total financial liabilities: - 167 692 - 128 422

Financial instruments by categories
All financial assets are included in category Loansl Receivables and all financial liabilities ameasured at
amortised cost.

Company'’s activities are exposed to following risks
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk, incl.
Interest rate risk
Currency exchange rate risk

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk, which isk of material losses arising in a case when @patty is not
able to fulfil its contractual obligations to theo@pany. The credit risk is critical to the operasioof the
Company, so it is important to manage this riskeftely.

The credit risk arises from cash and cash equitslateposits with banks and financial institutioas, well as
credit exposure to customers, including outstandigivables and committed transactions.

Sources of credit risk

Credit risk mainly relates to few largest customefishe Company. Largest part 51.5% (2012: 48.6%dyaule
receivables natural gas comprises of debts of gesdrcustomers of the Company, one of these cussodsit
comprised 29.5% (2012: 34.7%), second and thirgektr customer debt comprised 6.9% and 4.5% resiigctf
(2012: 9.8% and 5.4%) of total trade receivablesitaBecember 31, 2013. The Company has introduodd a
observes such a credit policy that envisages gefjoods on credit only to customers with a goodlicrgistory,
controlling the amount of credit set for each coso Debts of 4 largest customers are not impa&edt
December 31, 2013.
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Credit risk management

Control over debtors is performed by Individual tonser transaction department (hereinafter - IndigldCTD),
Industrial customers transaction department (haf&in- Industrial CTD), Contact centre (hereinafteCC) and
Financial accounting department of the Company.

A debtors aging analysis is prepared on a monthgysh Debtors are analysed in the following groups:
- households, which use natural gas for heating papor for heating purposes and for other purposes
simultaneously;
- households, which use natural gas for other pusptismn heating;
- companies with gas consumption less than 25 tmous&a year;
- companies with gas consumption more than 25 thubisd a year.

Debt monitoring process of households, which udarabgas for heating purposes or for heating puses and
for other purposes in parallel

1. When the payment due date, specified in théesatht procedures, for the natural gas receiveihgluthe
settlement period, is reached (according to levatagpnsumption payment scheme), Individual CTD rayea
dispatching of a reminder about debts overdue toi@s.

2. If the debt is not repaid within a time limitt e the reminder, a warning of natural gas sugptgrmination is
sent to the household.

3. If the payment is not repaid within a specifitate, a debtor for heating is included in a natges supply’s
termination list and the supply of natural gasisrinated.

4. After receiving of the natural gas supply’s teration deed, Individual CTD or a respective Dejpent
performs a final debt calculation and sends a cliima debt to the debtor with a notice of debtokexry
procedures.

5. If the debt amount exceeds EUR 3@ the payment deadline set in the claim falls, dndividual CTD or a
respective Department evaluates possibilities diecting the debt from the debtor under compulsdry,legal
proceedings.

6. If the Debtor is declared insolvent, IndividU@I'D or a respective Department organises a terroimaif
natural gas supply for the gasified object of trebfor at the earliest possible time, as well apames required
documentation and transfers the documents to tgelldepartment for submission of creditors’ claim.

Debt monitoring process diouseholds, which use natural gas for other purpdken heating

1. When the payment due date, specified in thdessdint procedures for the natural gas receivedndutie
settlement period is reached (according to leveraggnsumption payment scheme), Individual CTD ayean
dispatching of a reminder about debts overdue tutds.

2. If the debt is not repaid within a time limittgie the reminder, a warning of natural gas sugptgrmination is
sent to the household.

3. If the debt is not paid during the term indichie the warning letter, Individual CTD initiatesrapeated
warning letter of natural gas termination sent tmtthe Debtor, at the same time informing Debtdisua
submitting their personal data to the debt coltecttompanies and the possibility that their persdata may be
included in the public data bases.

4. If a Debt collection company could not colldwt ebt of the Debtor, or the debt for natural gasplied based
on leveraged consumption payment scheme exceedslEQRr the Debtor has not paid for supplied natuesd g
for the last 5 (five) years, the debtor is includedhe natural gas supply’s termination list aheé supply of
natural gas is terminated.
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5. After receiving of the natural gas supply’s teration deed Individual CTD or a respective Depaitin
performs a final debt calculation and sends a clfoma debt to the debtor with a notice of debtokexy
procedures.

6. If the debt amount exceeds EUR 3 the payment deadline set in the claim falls, dindividual CTD or a
respective Department evaluates possibilities diecting the debt from the debtor under compulsdry,legal
proceedings.

7. If the Debtor is declared insolvent, Individ@@r'D or a respective Department organises the textiim of
natural gas supply for the gasified object of trebfor at the earliest possible time, as well apames required
documentation and transfers the documents to tgalldepartment for submission of creditors’ claim.

Debt monitoring process @bmpanies with gas consumption less than 25 thabisfia year

1. When the payment due date, specified in thdesatht procedures, for the natural gas receivednglur
settlement period, is reached (according to levatagpnsumption payment scheme), Individual CTD reyea
dispatching of reminder to Debtors about overdue.

2. If the payment for the natural gas receivedrduthe settlement period is not received afterdidite specified in
the settlement procedures, Individual CTD and Diepants send a warning letter to Debtors about teatitn of
natural gas supply.

3. If a payment is not received during the termidatéd in the warning letter, respective departsaftthe
Company issue an order for termination of the sppphatural gas to the gasified object of the Debt

4. If a termination of the natural gas supply adiag the Counter data is not possible at the igdsifbject of the
Debtor, Individual CTD or a respective Departmesrids to the Debtor, as well as to the gasifiedatlgener (if
the Debtor is not an owner of the gasified objectgpeated warning letter about the gas supplysitation, at
the same time informing about administrative resuility.

5. After receiving of the natural gas supply’s teration deed, Individual CTD or a respective Dejmemt
performs a final debt calculation and sends a clfoma debt to the debtor with a notice of debtokexry
procedures.

6. If the debt amount exceeds EUR 3 the payment deadline set in the claim falls, dindividual CTD or a
respective Department evaluates possibilities diecting the debt from the debtor under compulsdry,legal
proceedings.

7. If the Debtor is declared insolvent, Individ@ID or a respective Department organises terminaifmatural
gas supply for the gasified object of the Debtortte earliest possible time, as well as prepargsined
documentation and transfers the documents to Laggrtment for submission of creditors’ claim.

Debt monitoring process of companies with gas eomion more than 25 thousand anyear

1. When the payment due date specified in theeset#tht procedures for the natural gas received glutin
settlement period is reached, Industrial CTD, a#f ag& Departments (agreed in advance with IndividZiaD)
arranges a dispatching of a warning letter to Destadout natural gas supply’s termination.

2. Agreeing with the head of Gas accounting andv@ay department, Industrial CTD and Departmentpgne
and send warning letters to the Debtors also ifgagment for supplied natural gas during any of ¢herent
month decades has not been received.

3. Every month CC or a respective Department cémtéebtors included in the list via phone and reimiabout
the payment due date. If a debt due from a debtaccumulated for natural gas supplied to an agatttype
house’ heating, Industrial CTD or a respective Depant may inform residents of the apartment typasie by
means of placing a corresponding announcement aheaermination of gas supply.
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4. If a payment is not received after the actiomhtioned above, the Company shall decide beforexpéeation
of the term indicated in the warning letter on eitlthe termination of gas supply or the delay of gapply
termination.

5. If a payment is not received during the termidatkéd in the warning letter and the decision tonteate gas
supply to the client has been made, an order isngio terminate gas supply to the debtor duringreesponding
day.

6. If the debt amount exceeds EUR 3&@d the payment deadline set in the claim falls, dadustrial CTD
evaluates possibilities of collecting the debt friiva debtor under compulsory, by legal proceedings.

7. If a client has been declared insolvent or i§extt to legal protection process, Industrial CTBynorganize gas
supply with a prepayment.

December 31, 2013 (LVL’000):

TOTAL Neither past due nor Past due, not Impaired, net*
impaired (incl. impaired
renegotiated
receivables)
Natural gas 26 674 24 894 1780 -
incl. renegotiated receivables 68 68 - -
Other services 1060 1 060 - -
Total current trade
receivables 27 734 25 954 1780 -
December 31, 2013 (EUR’000):
TOTAL  Neither past due nor Past due, not Impaired, net*
impaired (incl. impaired
renegotiated
receivables)
Natural gas 37 954 35421 2533 -
incl. renegotiated receivables 97 97 - -
Other services 1508 1508 - -
Total current trade
receivables 39 462 36 929 2 533 -
December 31, 2012 (LVL’000):
TOTAL  Neither past due nor Past due, not Impaired, net*
impaired (incl. impaired
renegotiated
receivables)
Natural gas 54 793 49 246 5 547 -
incl. renegotiated receivables 64 64 - -
Other services 2 460 2 460 - -
Total current trade
receivables 57 253 51 706 5 547 -
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December 31, 2012 (EUR’000):

Natural gas
incl. renegotiated receivables
Other services

Total current trade
receivables

TOTAL  Neither past due nor Past due, not Impaired, net*
impaired (incl. impaired
renegotiated
receivables)
77 963 70 071 7 892 -
92 92 - -
3501 3501 - -
81 464 73572 7 892 -

*100% provisions are created for doubtful deb{see Note 5).

December 31, 2013 (LVL’000):

Advance payments for
materials

Tax receivables

Other receivables
Total other receivables

December 31, 2013 (EUR’000):

Advance payments for
materials

Tax receivables

Other receivables

TOTAL Neither past due nor

Past due, not Impaired, net*

impaired (incl. impaired
renegotiated
receivables)
8 8 - -
1 1 - -
89 52 37 -
98 61 37 -

TOTAL Neither past due nor

Past due, not Impaired, net*

Total other receivables

impaired (incl. impaired
renegotiated
receivables)
11 11 - -
1 1 - -
127 74 53 -
139 86 53 -

December 31, 2012 (LVL’000):

TOTAL Neither past due nor

Past due, not Impaired, net*

impaired (incl. impaired

renegotiated

receivables)
Advance payments for
materials 111 111 - -
Advance payments to
employees 1 1 - -
Tax receivables 1 1 - -
Other receivables 149 102 a7 -
Total other receivables 262 215 47 -
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December 31, 2012 (EUR’000):

TOTAL Neither past due nor Past due, not Impaired, net*
impaired (incl. impaired

renegotiated

receivables)
Advance payments for materials 158 158 - -
Advance payments to employees 2 2 - -
Tax receivables 1 1 - -
Other receivables 212 145 67 -
Total other receivables 373 306 67 -

*100% provisions are created for doubtful deb{sex Note 7).

Quality of the debtors

Fully performing debtors having no overdue debts mainly heat supply companies which as at Deceiber
2013 account for 61% of trade receivables foraakVL 16.2 million (EUR 23.1 million). The sharelders of
major part of the heat supply companies are localioipalities, which guarantee timely settlementhaf debts or
make advance payments for natural gas.

Past due not impaired and impaired debtors arsewired (with mortgage or commercial pledge).

Aging analysis of trade receivables past due, btitmpaired is following:

31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Up to 3 months 1780 5 547 2 533 7892
1780 5 547 2 533 7892

Aging analysis of other trade receivables past Huenot impaired is following:

31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Up to 3 months 37 22 53 31
3 to 6 months - 25 - 36
37 47 53 67
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Term deposits and cash at bank

Before placing a term deposit the Board of the Camypevaluates credit ratings, financial performaasevell as
offered interest rates of the banks.

Moody’s Investors Services credit ratings of bafisits owners) are used by the Company (as atuaepr20,
2014):

Long term  Short term Rating of Rating
Bank . i . . .
rating rating financial security forecast
Nordea Bank Finland Aa3 P-1 C Stable
Pohjola Bank Plc Aa3 P-1 C- Stable
DnB ASA Al P-1 C- Stable
SEB group Al P-1 C- Stable
Swedbank AB Al P-1 C- Stable
Danske Bank AB Baal pP-2 C- Positive
SMP bank (Russia) Baa3 -* E+ Stable
Citadele bank B2 Not prime E+ Stable
* Data on credit rating is not available
31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR'000 EUR’000
Citadele bank 1479 4 549 2104 6 472
Swedbank 940 1548 1337 2203
SEB bank 717 5720 1020 8 139
DnB bank 5051 5120 7 187 7 285
GE Money Bank - 154 - 219
Nordea Bank Finland Latvia
branch 728 1556 1036 2214
Danske Bank Latvia branch 14 383 3893 20 465 5539
Pohjola Bank Latvia branch 5 - 8 -
SMP Bank 279 41 397 58
UniCredit Bank - 2 - 3
Total accounts with banks 23 582 22 583 33554 3221
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31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Aa3 733 1556 1044 2214
Al 6 708 10 994 9544 15 643
A2 - 1548 - 2203
A3 - 2 - 3
Baal 14 383 3893 20 465 5539
Baa3 279 41 397 58
B2 1479 4 549 2104 6472
Total accounts with banks 23582 22 583 33 554 3221

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is associated with the Company’slapito settle its liabilities within agreed duetda.

Main guidelines applied by the Company — do notiedelay of payments to creditors and prioritisg/ments to
suppliers for the delivered gas. If the Companysduat have sufficient amount of cash, a credit iknesed.

An operating cash flow plan is prepared to manageidity risk on a monthly basis after actual dafathe
previous month is received, or in cases which niggificantly affect financial performance (signidiot changes
in heavy fuel global market price / or natural gaschase prices) of the Company.

Contractual maturity of liabilities as at 31 Decemnt2013 (LVL'000):

3 months-
<1 month 1-3 months 1 year Total
Trade payables 3439 6 466 81 209 91114
Other liabilities, incl. 106 - 315 421
Accrued expenses for other expenses - - 315 315
Other short term liabilities 106 - - 106
3545 6 466 81524 91535
Contractual maturity of liabilities as at 31 Decemt2013 (EUR’'000):
3 months-
<1 month 1-3 months 1 year Total
Trade payables 4 893 9 200 115 550 129 643
Other liabilities, incl. 151 - 448 599
Accrued expenses for other expenses - - 448 448
Other short term liabilities 151 - - 151
5044 9 200 115998 130 242
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Contractual maturity of liabilities as at 31 Decemt2012 (LVL'000):

3 months-
<1 month 1-3 months 1 year Total
Trade payables 1358 60 023 59 61 440
Other liabilities, incl. 138 3 335 476
Accrued expenses for other expenses - - 335 335
Other short term liabilities 138 3 - 141
1496 60 026 394 61 916
Contractual maturity of liabilities as at 31 Decemt2012 (EUR’000):
3 months-
<1 month 1-3 months 1 year Total
Trade payables 1932 85 405 84 87421
Other liabilities, incl, 197 4 476 677
Accrued expenses for other expenses - - 476 476
Other short term liabilities 197 4 - 201
2129 85 409 560 88 098

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Company is not exposed to cash flow interdstniak, as it has no borrowings as at DecembeB13 (see
Note 10).Other financial assets and liabilities bear norge or interest rate is fixed. As all financiakats and
liabilities are accounted for at amortised cost, @ompany is not exposed to the fair value intaedstrisk.

Foreign currency exchange risk

Foreign currency exchange risk is a probabilityat tforeign currency exchange fluctuations will affehe
financial position and cash flows of the Companlye Tompany is not directly subject to the risklo€tuation of
foreign currency rates as the gas purchase prigeti;m USD and afterwards recalculated in EUR,re@® the gas
sales tariffs are set in LVL. Settlements for topied gas are made in EUR. The changes in gahase prices
in USD depending on the quotation of oil produats eovered by the PUC-approved natural gas satdfs ta
which to a certain extent cover the fluctuationsboth the EUR/USD rate. The risk of fluctuationsfofeign
currency rates related to debts to suppliers igundntrol by keeping a significant share of finahcesources in
deposits of the respective currency.
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Latvia has joined the Euro Zone and its nationatency is Euro since 1 January 2014. Fluctuatidnsuarency
exchange rates will no longer influence the opergi activities of the Company. The Company dodsuge any

currency hedge tools.

Open foreign currencies positions:

31.12.2013.

USD’000 RUB’000 Citas'000
Financial assets 562 - 55
Financial liabilities - - (18)
Balance sheet position in original
currency 562 - 37
Balance sheet position in LVL'000 289 - 4
Balance sheet position in EUR’000 412 - 5

Open foreign currencies positions:
31.12.2012.
USD’'000 RUB’000 Other'000

Financial assets 53 192 55

Financial liabilities - - -
Balance sheet position in original

currency 53 192 55
Balance sheet position in LVL'000 28 3 4
Balance sheet position in EUR’000 40 5 6

Exchange rate fluctuations sensitivity analysis

In determination of future fluctuations of exchamates, assumption is made based on prior year ¢&i®ency
exchange rate fluctuations, which were in the ramige3% (2012: 5%) and for other currencies in mif 1%
(2012: 1%) (net of tax effect).

December 31, 2013

Impact to Impact to Impact to Impact to
Currency Book current year  current year Book current year  current year
value . ' value . '
profit profit profit profit
+3% (USD) -3% (USD) +3% (USD) -3% (USD)
+1% (other -1% (other +1% (other -1% (other
currencies) currencies) currencies) currencies)
LVL’000 LVL’000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Assets
Cash uUsD 3 0 0 4 0 0
Other 4 0 0 6 0 0
Accounts
receivable usbD 286 10 (10) 407 14 (14)
293 10 (20) 417 14 (14)
Liabilities
Accounts
payable usD 9 1 (1) 13 1 (1)
9 1 (1) 13 1 (1)
Net impact 284 9 (9 404 13 (13)
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December 31, 2012

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Book Impact to Impact to Book Impact to Impact to
Currency 00 currentyear  current year o0 current year  current year
value ' ' value . .
profit profit profit profit
+5% (USD) -5% (USD) +5% (USD) -5% (USD)
+4% (RUB) -4% (RUB) +4% (RUB) -4% (RUB)
+1% (other -1% (other +1% (other -1% (other
currencies) currencies) currencies) currencies)
LVL’000 LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Assets
Cash usD 28 2 (2) 40 3 3)
Other 4 0 0 6 0 0
Accounts
receivable usb 3 0 0 4 0 0
35 2 (2) 50 3 3)
Net impact 35 2 2 50 3 3

29.2. Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capitat@amsafeguard the Company’s ability to continue apiag
concern in order to provide returns for sharehaa@ard benefits for other stakeholders and to maimata optimal
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages capital, based on a propasfiborrowed capital against the total capital. Thsiso is
calculated as proportion of total liabilities tceetlotal capital of the Company, except cash antl egsivalents.
Liabilities include all current and non-currentdiities, but total capital includes all liabiliseof the Company and
equity. This ratio is used to evaluate the striectof the capital of the Company, as well as itveaty. The
strategy of the Company is to ensure that the ratimt lower than 3% and not higher than 30%.

In 2013 and 2012 proportion of borrowed capitaital capital was as follows:
31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.

LVL’'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000
Total liabilities 182 382 155 998 259 505 221 965
(Cash and cash equivalents) (23582) (22584) (33 554) (32 134)
Net total liabilities 158 800 133 41¢ 225 951 189 831
Total liabilities and equity 610 193 582 793 868 226 829 240
Borrowed capital proportion to total
capital 26.02% 22.89% 26.02% 22.89%

29.3. Fair value
IFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techegbased on whether the inputs to those valusgimtques are

observable or unobservable. Observable inputs cteflearket data obtained from independent sources;
unobservable inputs reflect the Group’s market mpsions.
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This hierarchy requires the use of observable ntadleta when available. The Group considers releaaoft
observable market prices in its valuations whessitde.

The objective of the fair value measurement, eveinactive markets, is to arrive at the price atchtan orderly
transaction would take place between market ppeits to sell the asset or transfer the liabilitytlze
measurement date under current market conditions.

In order to arrive at the fair value of a finandiastrument different methods are used: quotedeprigaluation
techniques incorporating observable data and vialuaechniques based on internal models. Theseatiaiu
methods are divided according with the fair valiezdrchy in Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within white fair value of a financial instrument is catéged shall be
determined on the basis of the lowest level inpat is significant to the fair value in its entiret

The classification of financial instruments in fa@ value hierarchy is a two-step process:

1. Classifying each input used to determine theviaue into one of the three levels;

2. Classifying the entire financial instrument lzhea the lowest level input that is significanthe fair value
in its entirety.

Quoted market prices - Level 1

Valuations in Level 1 are determined by referereradjusted quoted prices for identical asset&bilities in
active markets where the quoted prices are reat#jlable and the prices represent actual and adguccurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Valuation technigues using observable inputs - L2ve

Valuation techniques in Level 2 are models whelesighificant inputs are observable for the asseliability,
either directly or indirectly. Inputs other thanaged prices included within Level 1 that are obable for the
asset or liability either directly (that is, asqa) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Valuation technigue using significant unobservabfmits - Level 3

A valuation technique that incorporates significanputs that are not based on observable marked dat
(unobservable inputs) is classified in Level 3. bDservable inputs are those not readily availablarinactive
market due to market illiquidity or complexity dfe product. Level 3 inputs are generally determibased on
observable inputs of a similar nature, historicestaations on the level of the input or analytieadtniques.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is distosed

The carrying amount of liquid and short-term finahinstruments (with maturity below 3 months), fxample,
cash and cash equivalents, short-term depositst-t&nm trade payables and trade receivables quoress to its
fair value.

Assets measured at fair value

Company'’s buildings, gas transmission and distidousystem and equipment are stated at revaluedimmno
determined by using depreciated replacement coitadewhich is based on the definition of the assetrket
value formulated in the International valuatiomstards. Depreciated replacement cost method westedlas the
most appropriate one given the specialised natutieecassets subject to revaluation, as such assetarely sold
or even not sold at all on the market. For the pses of assessing the replacement cost, the data tie
construction costs of the Latvia’s leading condtarccompanies for 2011 was analysed, taking icoant the
loss of technical and functional value of the assetr time. As a result, it may be concluded bwh observable
and unobservable market data is being used in tiafuvhich corresponds to the 3rd level valuatiechinique.
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The management of the Company has evaluated e itme¢he construction costs during the period f@0a1 till
2013 and has concluded that based on data prokigéte Central Statistical Bureau of Latvia, themesidantial
building construction costs have increased by S%ustrial and underground pipeline constructiontcdgve
increased by 7% during reporting period. New eq@iptrpurchase costs compared to those used in etialy
have not significantly changed.

30 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has planned to invest the following @m® of capital expenditures for property, plant an
equipment and intangible assets in the subseqeant y
31.12.2013. 31.12.2012. 31.12.2013. 31.12.2012.
LVL'000 LVL'000 EUR’000 EUR’000

Contracted for, but not delivered 8 307 5529 10 82 7 867
Authorised, but not yet contracted for 13 691 16 86 19 480 28 267
21998 25 395 31 300 36134

31 TAX CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The tax authorities may at any time inspect thekbaand records within 3 years subsequent to thertegh tax
year, and may impose additional tax assessmentpamalties. The Company's management is not awaaayo
circumstances which may give rise to a potentigena liability in this respect.

32 LITIGATION

On September 2011 the Company was investigatedcoordance with the European Council Regulation
N0.1/2003 part 4 of Article 20 (Case COMP/39.816fdnnection with the alleged abuse by the relatedpany
“Gazprom” of a dominant position in the gas secidrich would be contrary to Article 102 of LESD darArticle

54 of the Agreement on the European Economic Areasaispected participation of JSC “Latvijadz€' in the
agreements, which would be directed against cometand would be contrary to Article 101 of LESIDda
Article 53 of the Agreement on the European Ecowoanea. The Company has signed an agreement ath a
firm that has international experience in the cotitipa proceedings and has prepared an assessihpotemtial
risks as well as defence strategy. As of the détéssuing these financial statements, no effectil@ms,
complains or court cases have been filed in ttgane

The management of the Company considers it to Ip@ssible at the moment to estimate when the abewe t
issues will be clarified or any potential losses ba estimated.

On October 1, 2013 Latvian State Competition Cdumeide a decision of December 16, 2011 case No-4B02
No0.95 (Prot. No.59, 2. 8) about the case broughhbyCompetition Council on Article 13 of the cortipen law
(abuse of dominant position) for the violation bétprohibition stated in part 1. With the CompetitiCouncil's
decision the Company is legally obligated to erel dhfair trade rules to new users, stopping to tinkural gas
supply contracts and gas supply to the user's gueviebt payments, and imposed a fine of 1.57anillis. As at
31 December 2013 the Company had accrued a td&a@lymillion LVL related to imposed fine and estimat
losses resulting from debt repayments.

Decision of the Competition Council is not effeetibecause the Company has appealed it in Regiontl
33 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There are no subsequent events since the lasbfitiie reporting year that would have a significafieéct on the
financial position of the Company as at December2813.
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